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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 

Meeting Date:  December 14, 2015 
 
The Board of Directors of Novato Sanitary District will hold a regular meeting at 5:00 
p.m., (note early start time*), Monday, December 14, 2015, at the District Offices, 500 
Davidson Street, Novato. 

*early start time to accommodate procedural matters for seating new Board. 
 
Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection in the District Office, 
500 Davidson Street, Novato, during normal business hours. They are also available on the 
District’s website:  www.novatosan.com. 

 
AGENDA 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

2. AGENDA APPROVAL: 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (PLEASE OBSERVE A THREE-MINUTE TIME LIMIT): 

This item is to allow anyone present to comment on any subject not on the  
agenda, or to request consideration to place an item on a future agenda. 
Individuals will be limited to a three-minute presentation.  No action will be  
taken by the Board at this time as a result of any public comments made. 

4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

a. Receive Statement of Appointment of Nominees in lieu of election. 
b. Administration of Oath of Office and seating of elected Board Members. 
c. Adopt Resolution No. 3093 Determining Persons Entitled to Fill Office. 
d. Presidential appointment of committee members. 
e. Adopt Resolution No. 3094 recognizing former Director Gary Butler. 

5. REVIEW OF MINUTES: 

a. Consider approval of minutes of the November 9, 2015 meeting. 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

The General Manager-Chief Engineer has reviewed the following items. To his 
knowledge, there is no opposition to the action. The items can be acted on in one 
consolidated motion as recommended or may be removed from the Consent Calendar 
and separately considered at the request of any person. 

a. Approve regular disbursements, November 10 - December 14, 2015. 
b. Ratify November payroll and payroll-related disbursements. 
c. Receive Deposit Summary, November 2015. 
d. Accept Fixed Asset Deletion Report for Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15. 
e. Adopt Resolution No. 3095 Approving and Executing an Amendment to the 

District’s 1983 Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (lease agreement) with the 
Marin County Flood Control and Water Conservation District to allow removal of 
27.4 acres from the Agreement and revert it back to the Flood Control District. 
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f. Approve Project Plans for Sewer Main Extension – Mendocino Lane (Ravicz). 
g. Adopt Resolution No. 3096: A Resolution Authorizing Acceptance of a Sanitary 

Sewer Easement from Arthur E. and Patricia Ravicz, 45 Mendocino Avenue. 

7. FINANCE COMMITTEE: 

a. Receive report from independent auditor, Maze and Associates. 
b. Receive Finance Committee report and recommendation, and accept the 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the years ended June 30, 
2015 and 2014, including audited financial statements. 

c. Receive presentations from CalPERS and Public Agency Retirement System 
(PARS) representatives on investment options for prefunding Other Post-
Employment Benefits (OPEB) liability, and provide direction to staff. 

8. WASTEWATER OPERATIONS COMMITTEE: 

a. Receive Wastewater Operations Committee Meeting Report - meeting of 
November 16, 2015. 

9. CAPITAL PROJECTS: 

a. Annual Treatment Plant & Pump Station Improvements; Ignacio Transfer Pump 
Station Site Improvements, Project Work Order No. 72805-15-01 - Grant Final 
Acceptance, and authorize staff to file the Notice of Completion. 

b. Collection System Improvements (Hamilton Trunk Sewer Rehabilitation Project), 
Account No. 72706: Authorize General Manager-Chief Engineer to issue a change 
order(s) in an amount not to exceed $55,000.00 to resolve an easement conflict. 

10. ADMINISTRATION: 

a. Approve Director Long and the General Manager-Chief Engineer to attend the 
California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Annual Washington DC 
conference, February 22-24, 2016. 

11. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND REQUESTS: 

a. North Bay Water Reuse Authority (NBWRA) meeting - Director Long. 
b. North Bay Watershed Association (NBWA) meeting - Director Miller. 

12. GENERAL MANAGER’S ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

13. ADJOURNMENT: 

Next resolution no. 3097. 

Next regular meeting date:  Monday, January 11, 2015, 6:00 PM at the Novato Sanitary 
District office, 500 Davidson Street, Novato, CA 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance 
to participate in this meeting, please contact the District at (415) 892-1694 at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting.  Notification prior to the meeting will enable the District to 
make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility to this meeting. 
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RESOLUTION NO.  3093 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING PERSONS 
ENTITLED TO FILL OFFICES 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District, Marin County, 
California, that 

WHEREAS, by reasons of completion of the 2015 Uniform District Election pursuant to 
procedures provided by law, the County Clerk of Marin County has made and delivered certificates 
of election to the persons, and for the offices hereinafter set forth; and 

WHEREAS, said persons have each taken the Oath of Office and, if required, executed and 
delivered the requisite bond; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY DETERMINED that the following offices are 
filled by the following persons, each of whom shall serve until the qualifications of that  
person’s successor, to wit; 

Novato Sanitary District Board Member (Term Expiring 2019): 

Jean Mariani 

Novato Sanitary District Board Member (Term Expiring 2019): 

A. Gerald (Jerry) Peters 

Novato Sanitary District Board Member (Term Expiring 2017): 

Carole Dillon-Knutson  

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly and regularly adopted and passed by 
the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District, Marin County, California, at a meeting 
thereof held on the 14th day of December, 2015, by the following vote: 

AYES, and in favor thereof, Members: 

NOES, Members: 

ABSENT, Members: 

___________________________ 
Jean Mariani 
President, Board of Directors 
Novato Sanitary District 

COUNTERSIGNED: 

________________ ________ 
Sandeep Karkal 
Board Secretary, Board of Directors 
Novato Sanitary District
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
LIST OF BOARD COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

Presidential appointment of Committee members for fiscal year 2015-16 
(Last Assignment: June 22, 2015) 

S:\Board Reports\2015\12 December\First meeting\Word Docs\4.d. Committee Appointments June 22, 2015.doc

A. Standing Committees: 

1. Joint City/District Solid Waste Committee:
Jean Mariani 
Gary Butler 
Brant Miller, Alternate 

2. Wastewater Operations Committee:
Brant Miller 
Jerry Peters 
Jean Mariani, Alternate 

3. Strategic Planning and New Facilities Committee:
Gary Butler 
William C. Long 
Brant Miller, Alternate 

4. Finance Committee:
William C. Long 
Jerry Peters 
Gary Butler, Alternate 

B. Regular Committees: 

1. California Association of Sanitation Agencies:
Jean Mariani, Delegate 
Jerry Peters, Alternate 

2. California Sanitation Risk Management Authority:
Sandeep Karkal, Delegate 
Brant Miller, Alternate 

3. North Bay Water Reuse Authority:
William C. Long, Delegate 
Jerry Peters, Alternate 

4. North Bay Watershed Association:
Brant Miller, Delegate 
Sandeep Karkal, Alternate 
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RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION 

Resolution No. 3094 

A Resolution Commending Mr. Gary Butler for 

Distinguished Service As A Member of The 

 Board of Directors of Novato Sanitary District 

Whereas, MR.  GARY BUTLER, 

was appointed on May 12, 2014 as a Member of the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District, serving on 

said Board until December 2015; and  

Whereas, Mr. Butler has faithfully served the District with efficiency and dedicated service, and has 

contributed substantially to its continued successful operation; and 

Whereas, his genuine concern for Novato Sanitary District and its constituents made him a valuable asset to 

the Board; and 

Whereas, the Members of this Board wish to give public recognition to his valuable contributions to the 

District; 

NOW, THEREFORE, SAID DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS DOES HEREBY ORDER, as follows: 

1. That this Board of Directors on its behalf, and on behalf of the people of this District, does hereby express

appreciation and gratitude to MR. GARY BUTLER for his loyal and dedicated service as a Member of said Board. 

2. That the Secretary of the District transmit a copy of this Resolution to MR.  GARY BUTLER with the

sincere good wishes of every member of this Board of Directors. 

UNANIMOUSLY ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District at a meeting 

thereof held on December 14, 2015. 

Attest: _________________________ ________________________________ 

Secretary          President 

_________________________ ___________________________ 
Member          Member 

____________________________ ____________________________ 
Member           Member 
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 

Board Meeting Minutes 

Meeting Date: November 9, 2015 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District was held at 
6:00 p.m., Monday, November 9, 2015, at the District Office, 500 Davidson Street, 
Novato. 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  President Jean Mariani, Directors Jerry Peters, Gary 
Butler, William Long, and Brant Miller. 

STAFF PRESENT:  General Manager-Secretary Sandeep Karkal, District Counsel Kent 
Alm, and Administrative Secretary Julie Swoboda.   

ALSO PRESENT:   Laura Creamer, Finance Officer, Novato Sanitary District 
John Bailey, Project Manager, Veolia 
Erik Brown, Technical Services Manager, Novato Sanitary District 
Steve McCaffrey, Director of Governmental Affairs, Novato Disposal 
William Shoen, Principal, R3 Consulting Group 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

AGENDA APPROVAL:  The agenda was approved as presented. 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  None. 

REVIEW OF MINUTES: 

Consider approval of minutes of the October 26, 2015 meeting.  Director Long 
requested a correction to the minutes on page four, paragraph one:  He stated that there 
were eleven (11) contacts in September from three residents.  and Further discussion followed, focusing 
primarily on optimizing how such contacts are tracked and reported.  The General Manager stated he 
would work with the Plant Manager on an optimized methodology.   

On motion of Director Peters, seconded by Director Long, and carried unanimously, the 
October 26, 2015 Board meeting minutes were approved as amended. 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

President Mariani called for a motion on the Consent Calendar items as follows: 

a. Approve capital project disbursements in the amount of $47,499.11, regular
disbursements in the amount of $91,866.54, and Board member
disbursements in the amount of $2,723.43.

b. Receive Deposit Summary, October 2015.
c. Receive Quarterly Investment Report, 1st Quarter, Fiscal Year FY15-16.

Item 5.a.
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d. Receive Summary Financial Report, 1st Quarter, FY15-16. 
e. Ratify Agreement for temporary sanitary sewer connection for Sonoma Marin 

Area Rail Transit (SMART) facility at 105 Roblar Drive. 

On motion of Director Peters, seconded by Director Long, and carried unanimously, the 
above listed Consent Calendar items were approved. 
 
SOLID WASTE:  PUBLIC HEARING – SET CALENDAR YEAR (CY) 2016 MAXIMUM 
ALLOWABLE SOLID WASTE RATES. 
 
- Receive staff report.  The General Manager stated that at the October 26, 2015 
meeting, the District Board reviewed the following: the CY2016 rate adjustment request 
by Novato Disposal Service (NDS); the report by the District’s consultant (R3 Consulting 
Group), that analyzed the NDS request; and a staff report with a recommendation for an 
overall solid waste rate adjustment based on a Refuse Rate Index (RRI) adjustment of 
+1.94%. He stated that at that meeting, the Board received an amended report by R3 
Consulting Group, lowering the rate adjustment from +1.94% to +1.33% based on 
corrected values in the fuel cost escalator component of the RRI. He noted that a copy 
of the amended R3 Consulting Group report presented at the October 26, 2015 meeting 
was included in the Board materials for reference, labeled as Attachment 1. 
 
- Open public hearing. President Mariani opened the public hearing at 6:08 p.m.   
 
- Public comments.  None. 
 
- Board comments.  Directors Long and Butler stated that they agreed with the 
calculations used to arrive at the R3 Consulting Group’s recommended +1.33% rate 
increase. 
 
- Close public hearing. President Mariani closed the public hearing at 6:10 p.m. 
 
- Adopt Resolution No. 3092 setting CY2016 maximum allowable rates for refuse 
collection and disposal services.   

On motion of Director Peters, seconded by Director Miller, and carried unanimously, the 
Board adopted Resolution No. 3092:  A Resolution Setting Maximum Solid Waste 
Service Charges for Novato Disposal Company in Novato Sanitary District. 
 
William Shoen, Steve MCaffrey, and Laura Creamer left the meeting at 6:12 p.m. 
 
CAPITAL PROJECTS: 
 
- Annual Treatment Plant/Pump Station Improvements: Olive Pump Station Re-roof 
Project, Project Work Order No. 72805-14-01 - Grant Final Acceptance of the Project, 
and authorize staff to file the Notice of Completion.  The General Manager stated that 
although the Board awarded the contract to Wedge Roofing on September 22, 2014, 
work began on April 6, 2015 and was substantially completed on April 23, 2015.  He 
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stated that the completion of punch list work items and warranty inspections by the 
material manufacturer impacted the schedule for project acceptance.  He noted that the 
final cost of the project was $43,800.00, the amount of the original bid.  He requested 
the Board grant final acceptance and authorize staff to file the Notice of Completion. 
 
On motion of Director Peters, seconded by Director Long, and carried unanimously, the 
Board granted final acceptance of the Olive Pump Station Re-Roof Project, No. 72805-
14-01, and authorized staff to file the Notice of Completion. 
 
- Maintenance Building, Account No. 73003 - Phase 1, Site Demolition, Project No. 
73003-01: Grant Final Acceptance of the Project, and authorize staff to file the Notice of 
Completion.  The General Manager stated that on May 11, 2015, the Board awarded 
the contract for the Maintenance Building Project, Phase 1, Site Demolition to West Bay 
Builders.  He stated that work was substantially completed on August 28, 2015, for a 
final cost of $479,547.00 or 1.3% above the bid amount.  He requested the Board grant 
final acceptance and authorize staff to file the Notice of Completion. 
 
On motion of Director Peters, seconded by Director Miller, and carried unanimously, the 
Board granted final acceptance of the Maintenance Building Project, Phase 1, Site 
Demolition, Project No. 73003-01, and authorized staff to file the Notice of Completion. 
 
ADMINISTRATION: 
 
- Approve job description, establish salary range, and authorize the General Manager to 
initiate recruitment for an Administrative/Risk Services Officer.  The General Manager 
stated that the recruitment for an Administrative/Risk Services Officer was established 
in August with the implementation of the District’s FY 2015-16 budget but stated that a 
job description for the position was not established at that time, so hiring did not move 
forward.  He stated that a job description was now prepared and he outlined the 
Administrative/Risk Services Officer duties.  He noted that the current part-time 
Administrative Services Specialist is planning her retirement in 2016 but will assist with 
the transition of duties to the new Administrative/Risk Services Officer. 
 
On motion of Director Peters, seconded by Director Long, and carried unanimously, the 
Board approved the job description for the Administrative/Risk Services Officer with a 
salary range of MC115, and authorized the General Manager to initiate recruitment. 
 
BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND REQUESTS: 
 
North Bay Watershed Association (NBWA) report:  Director Miller gave an overview of 
his participation at the NBWA meeting which was held on Friday, November 6th.  He 
discussed a presentation by Caitlin Sweeney, San Francisco Estuary Partnership, on 
flood control and sediment matching/disposal.  He also discussed a presentation by 
Dyan Whyte, Regional Water Quality Control Board, who discussed watershed health. 
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Board member request regarding California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA):  
Director Long presented a letter from CASA advising that they will require the CASA 
Executive Board members to be a Designated Agency Representative (DAR).  Director 
Long is on the CASA Executive Board, however, the District’s DARs are President 
Mariani (delegate) and President Pro-Tem Peters (alternate).  Upon discussion, 
President Mariani asked if Director Peters would be agreeable to stepping down as 
alternate so that Director Long may be appointed as the Alternate.  Director Peters was 
in agreement, and President Mariani appointed Director Long as Alternate and DAR for 
the District.   
 
Expressions of Appreciation - outgoing Board Member: Outgoing Director Butler noted 
that this would be his last Novato Sanitary District Board meeting as a Director, and 
expressed his appreciation to the Board and staff for their support and friendship during 
his term as a Board member.  President Mariani expressed her appreciation for Director 
Butler’s participation on the Board.  Directors Long, Peters, and Miller also expressed 
their appreciation. 

GENERAL MANAGER’S ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
-   A Strategic Planning Workshop will be held at the District office on November 19th at 

9:00 a.m. 
-   A Wastewater Operations Committee meeting will be held on Monday, November 

16th at 2:00 p.m. Director Peters is not available (excused absence), therefore 
President Mariani (Committee Alternate) will attend.   

-   A Regular Board meeting will be held on Monday, December 14th.   
-   The District will be closed on Wednesday, November 11th, in observance of Veterans 

Day, a District holiday. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  There being no further business to come before the Board, President 
Mariani adjourned the meeting at 6:50 p.m.  
 
 
          Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
               
          Sandeep Karkal 

Secretary 
 
Julie Swoboda, Recording 



Date Num Name Credit

Dec 1 - 11, 15
12/11/2015 4258 Miller, Brant 974.25
12/11/2015 4257 Mariani, Jean M 615.14
12/11/2015 4256 Long, William C 558.68
12/11/2015 4259 Peters, A. Gerald 389.57
12/11/2015 4255 Butler, Gary

Dec 1 - 11, 15 2,537.64

Novato Sanitary District
Board Check Register

For November 2015
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Date Num Name Credit

Nov 30, 15
11/30/2015 58826 Veolia Water North America, Inc. 166,528.34
11/30/2015 58813 Pacific, Gas & Electric 74,501.93
11/30/2015 58824 State Water Resources Control B... 48,448.00
11/30/2015 58827 Veolia Water North America, Lab 26,742.31
11/30/2015 58819 Regional Government Services 8,395.00
11/30/2015 58818 Rauch Communication Consultan... 5,393.74
11/30/2015 58814 Paul Louis, Independent Consultant 3,600.00
11/30/2015 58817 R3 Consulting Group, Inc. 2,990.00
11/30/2015 58823 Shape Incorporated 2,698.08
11/30/2015 58811 North Marin Water District - Lab 2,310.00
11/30/2015 58799 California Diesel & Power 2,019.25
11/30/2015 58808 Marin/Sonoma Mosquito Dist 2,005.36
11/30/2015 58825 Unicorn Group 1,314.68
11/30/2015 58812 North Marin Water District Payroll 1,307.00
11/30/2015 58820 RMC Water & Environment, Inc. 1,248.50
11/30/2015 58800 Cantarutti Electric, Inc 1,194.71
11/30/2015 58804 IEDA, INC 1,104.00
11/30/2015 58815 Peterson Trucks 1,038.73
11/30/2015 58801 Diesel Emissions Service, Inc. 779.86
11/30/2015 58828 Verizon EQ 588.17
11/30/2015 58797 BoundTree Medical, LLC 562.45
11/30/2015 58798 Cagwin & Dorward Inc. 435.00
11/30/2015 58822 Service Station Systems, Inc. 377.87
11/30/2015 58805 Labworks Equipment, Inc. 262.50
11/30/2015 58829 Verizon Wireless- 258.99
11/30/2015 58807 Marin Mechanical II, Inc. 216.00
11/30/2015 58821 Schwaab Inc. 107.20
11/30/2015 58806 Marin Independent Journal 98.20
11/30/2015 58803 Honey Bucket 88.21
11/30/2015 58816 Petty Cash 49.89
11/30/2015 58796 Barnett Medical LLC 45.00
11/30/2015 58802 First Alarm 38.74
11/30/2015 58810 North Marin Water District 34.35
11/30/2015 58830 VWR International Inc. 31.81
11/30/2015 58809 North Marin Auto Parts 15.25
11/30/2015 58795 B.W.S. Distributors, Inc. 14.12

Nov 30, 15 356,843.24

Novato Sanitary District
Operating Check Register

November 30, 2015
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Date Num Name Credit

Dec 14, 15
12/14/2015 58873 Veolia Water North America, Inc. 168,452.34
12/14/2015 58867 Pacific, Gas & Electric 59,320.05
12/14/2015 58871 Stericycle-(Previously PSC) 37,016.03
12/14/2015 58874 Veolia Water North America, Lab 26,742.31
12/14/2015 58875 Veolia Water Recycled Water Oper. 17,315.05
12/14/2015 58878 Websoft Developers, Inc. 9,000.00
12/14/2015 58850 EDD 8,100.00
12/14/2015 58870 Rauch Communication Consultan... 6,593.42
12/14/2015 58857 Johnson, Dee 5,670.00
12/14/2015 58834 Aqua Science 5,650.00
12/14/2015 58862 North Bay Watershed Assoc. 2,500.00
12/14/2015 58848 Dearborn National 2,249.62
12/14/2015 58846 County of Marin-public works 2,045.00
12/14/2015 58872 Telstar Instruments Inc 1,328.15
12/14/2015 58855 IEDA, INC 1,104.00
12/14/2015 58844 Cintas Corporation 1,026.17
12/14/2015 58856 Jan-Pro Cleaning Systems 1,005.00
12/14/2015 58831 Airgas USA, LLC 970.13
12/14/2015 58864 North Marin Water District 871.86
12/14/2015 58836 B.W.S. Distributors, Inc. 838.38
12/14/2015 58838 Bay Area Barricade Service, Inc. 828.40
12/14/2015 58877 Water Components & Building, Inc. 652.83
12/14/2015 58860 Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & W... 638.06
12/14/2015 58842 CDW Government, Inc. 540.00
12/14/2015 58852 Evoqua Water Technologies - Lab 525.00
12/14/2015 58876 Vision Service Plan 504.26
12/14/2015 58869 Pitney Bowes Reserve Account 400.00
12/14/2015 58863 North Marin Auto Parts 300.04
12/14/2015 58845 Claremont EAP, Inc. 295.00
12/14/2015 58843 Central Marin Sanitation District 250.00
12/14/2015 58840 BoundTree Medical, LLC 248.96
12/14/2015 58851 Environmental Products and Acc... 215.63
12/14/2015 58835 AT&T Mobility 205.59
12/14/2015 58853 Grainger 192.71
12/14/2015 58839 Beecher Engineering,Inc 170.00
12/14/2015 58868 Pini Hardware 160.26
12/14/2015 58832 Alpha Analytical Lab,Inc. 156.00
12/14/2015 58858 Leonardi Automotive & Electric, Inc. 146.76
12/14/2015 58866 Orkin Pest Control, Inc. 144.56
12/14/2015 58865 Novato Car Wash 106.95
12/14/2015 58841 Cagwin & Dorward Inc. 103.00
12/14/2015 58847 CWEAmembers 96.00
12/14/2015 58837 Batteries Plus     Inc 74.07
12/14/2015 58833 American Messaging 68.45
12/14/2015 58849 Dillon-Knutson, Carole. 51.76
12/14/2015 58859 Marin Conservation League 35.00
12/14/2015 58854 HCD 28.00
12/14/2015 58861 MME 6.19

Dec 14, 15 364,940.99

Novato Sanitary District
Operating Check Register

December 14, 2015
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Date Num Name Credit

Nov 30, 15
11/30/2015 2952 Roto Rooter-(Inc.) 49,781.27
11/30/2015 2951 P,G & E1-Projects 24,414.31
11/30/2015 2949 Michael Paul Company Inc. 20,900.00
11/30/2015 2948 Linscott Engineering Contract... 7,230.40
11/30/2015 2943 GHD Inc. 4,433.15
11/30/2015 2944 Lateral-Driller 1,500.00
11/30/2015 2945 Lateral-Jung 1,500.00
11/30/2015 2946 Lateral-Kennedy 1,500.00
11/30/2015 2947 Lateral-Norton 1,500.00
11/30/2015 2950 NorthBay Reprographics 174.33

Nov 30, 15 112,933.46

Novato Sanitary District
Capital Projects Check Register

November 30, 2015
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Date Num Name Credit

Dec 14, 15
12/14/2015 2971 State Water Resources Contr... 5,378,956.19
12/14/2015 2967 Maggiora & Ghilotti Inc. 127,696.08
12/14/2015 2970 Nute Engineering Inc. 13,444.55
12/14/2015 2966 Linscott Engineering Contract... 5,777.18
12/14/2015 2963 GHD Inc. 4,260.00
12/14/2015 2968 Marin Mechanical II, Inc. 2,518.00
12/14/2015 2972 Wedge Roofing Inc. 2,190.00
12/14/2015 2964 Lateral-Baird 1,500.00
12/14/2015 2965 Lateral-Ribbel 1,500.00
12/14/2015 2969 Miller Pacific Engineering, Inc. 803.50

Dec 14, 15 5,538,645.50

Novato Sanitary District
Capital Projects Check Register

December 14, 2015
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 Novato Sanitary District

 Payroll and Payroll Related Check Register
November - 2015

Date Description Amount

11/30/2015 November  - Payroll 100,558.21

11/20/2015 November - Retirees Health Benefits 12,448.13

11/30/2015 CALPERS Retirement 7,812.01

11/30/2015 United States Treasury 22,043.22

11/30/2015 CalPers Supplemental Income Plan 2,500.00

11/30/2015 EDD 6,303.84

11/30/2015 Lincoln Financial Group 8,214.60

11/30/2015 Lincoln Financial Group-401a Plan 3,460.80

11/30/2015 Lincoln Financial Group-401a Plan 3,510.95

11/30/2015 CALPERS Retirement 12,823.33

11/30/2015 CALPERS Retirement Funding 12,232.00

11/30/2015 Delta Dental 2,962.40

11/30/2015 CalPERS Health 31,350.91

11/30/2015 Local Union 315 460.00

11/30/2015 Operating Engineers Trust 302.08

226,982.48
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 10:00 AM
 12/08/15

 Novato Sanitary District

 Deposit Summary
 November 2015

Type Date Name Account Amount

Deposit 11/02/2015 11113 · Westamerica - Operations

Hayden, Ron 11200 - Accounts Receivable 56,983.82

TOTAL 56,983.82

Deposit 11/02/2015 11113 · Westamerica - Operations

Ben Franklin Plumbing 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

Hardiman Construction 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

Ben Franklin Plumbing 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

Biomarin 11200 - Accounts Receivable 1,240.00

Novato Charter School 11200 - Accounts Receivable 1,967.32

Novato Unified School District 11200 - Accounts Receivable 98,671.10

Indian Valley College 11200 - Accounts Receivable 21,185.76

TOTAL 123,184.18

Deposit 11/05/2015 11113 · Westamerica - Operations

County of Marin 51015 · Property Taxes 120.99

Zaragoza Plumbing 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

Advanced Trenchless 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

Drill Tech Plumbing 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

City of Novato- 11200 - Accounts Receivable 18,276.72

TOTAL 18,517.71

Deposit 11/10/2015 11113 · Westamerica - Operations

Eagle Eye Management Services 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

Eagle Eye Management Services 51020 · Connection Charges 8,538.00

Salkhi Family Holdings, Inc. 51020 · Connection Charges 3,948.00

North Marin Water District- 11200 - Accounts Receivable 28,344.25

Graphene Tech 11200 - Accounts Receivable 210.00

Verizon California- 11200 - Accounts Receivable 3,648.72

Marin County Free Library 11200 - Accounts Receivable 1,857.48

TOTAL 46,586.45

Deposit 11/12/2015 11113 · Westamerica - Operations

USCG-Finance Center 11200 - Accounts Receivable 183.34

USCG 11200 - Accounts Receivable 45.84

TOTAL 229.18

 Page 1 of 2

Item 6.c.
(2 pages)

SandeepK
Rectangle



 10:00 AM
 12/08/15

 Novato Sanitary District

 Deposit Summary
 November 2015

Deposit 11/13/2015 11113 · Westamerica - Operations

Galli, Heather 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

Hardiman Construction 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

Kennedy, Marie 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

County of Marin 11200 - Accounts Receivable 148,153.00

Roy's Sewer Service, Inc.- 11200 - Accounts Receivable 69.34

TOTAL 148,342.34

Deposit 11/17/2015 11113 · Westamerica - Operations

Novato Community Hospital 11200 - Accounts Receivable 22,654.08

North Marin Water District- 11200 - Accounts Receivable 1,962.36

Indian Valley Golf Course 11200 - Accounts Receivable 5,199.84

AT &T 11200 - Accounts Receivable 1,134.36

TOTAL 30,950.64

Deposit 11/19/2015 11113 · Westamerica - Operations

USCG 11200 - Accounts Receivable 14,025.00

TOTAL 14,025.00

Deposit 11/24/2015 11113 · Westamerica - Operations

Skinner, Michael 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

John's Plumbing Service 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

Hardiman Construction 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

Tsui, Gigi 41040 · Permit & Inspection Fee 40.00

Tsui, Gigi 51020 · Connection Charges 9,870.00

Ravicz, Arthur 41030 · Plan Check & Inspection Fee 332.56

Ravicz, Arthur 51020 · Connection Charges 1,974.00

Roto Rooter 11200 - Accounts Receivable 280.42

P,G & E 11200 - Accounts Receivable 57.96

Golden Gate Bridge, Hwy & Trans - 11200 - Accounts Receivable 888.72

TOTAL 13,563.66

Total Deposits for November 2015 452,382.98

 Page 2 of 2
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE: Fixed Asset Deletion Report for 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15. 

MEETING DATE: December 14, 2015 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 6.d. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Information. Receive report. 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
 
As part of the District’s annual audit process, staff prepares fixed asset reports including reports of 
items added or deleted during the fiscal year. 
 
The attached asset deletion report is provided for fiscal year (FY) 2014-15 and lists the items deleted 
between July 1, 2014 and June 30, 2015. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Fixed Asset Deletion Report, FY 2014-15. 
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Novato Sanitary District

Fixed Assets Disposed of In Fiscal Year 2014/15

TABLE A
Detail of Assets Auctioned in fiscal year

Date Aquired Asset Description Proceeds Cost Accum Depr

Less: Selling 

expenses

Gain/(Loss)  

on Sale

07/01/00 Dodge 1/2 ton Pickup ‐ 2000 1,800.00           14,291.00      14,291.00         (139.00)               1,661.00   

07/01/03 Electric Car #1 ‐ 2003 100.00               2,808.00         2,808.00           (3.00)  97.00        

07/01/03 Electric Car #2 ‐ 2003 100.00               2,808.00         2,808.00           (3.00)  97.00        

07/01/04 Chevy Silverado Truck ‐2004 4,000.00           14,109.00      14,109.00         (205.00)               3,795.00   

07/01/05 Trailer 4 x 8 ‐ 2005 350.00               2,149.00         1,021.08           (16.05)                 (793.97)     

07/01/06 Iron Eagle Trailer ‐ 2005 1,600.00           1,480.00         1,258.00           (218.00)               1,160.00   

Total 7,950.00           37,645.00      36,295.08        (584.05)               6,016.03   

TABLE B
Detail of Remaining Disposed of Assets:

Cost Accum Depr Gain/(Loss)

Equipment ‐ Admin/Engineering

07/01/95 Work Station 2,724.00           2,724.00         ‐

07/01/95 Work Station 2,724.00           2,724.00         ‐

07/01/06 Brother Laser Printer 500.00               500.00            ‐

07/01/09 Computer‐Lab 865.00               865.00            ‐

07/01/05 Computer‐SCADA‐Admin 2,918.00           2,918.00         ‐

07/01/05 Computer‐SCADA‐Spare 2,918.00           2,918.00         ‐

07/01/05 Computer‐Collections 1,707.00           1,707.00         ‐

07/01/04 Computer‐Operations 1,444.00           1,444.00         ‐

07/01/07 Dell Computer‐LAB 825.00               825.00            ‐

07/01/08 Laptop‐Operations 814.00               814.00            ‐

07/01/10 Server‐Collections 4,523.00           4,071.10         (451.90)            

Equipment ‐ Lab

07/01/01 Autoclave 6,155.00           6,155.00         ‐

07/01/79 Conductivity Bridge 1,000.00           1,000.00         ‐

07/01/88 Chiller 1,000.00           1,000.00         ‐

Equipment ‐ Treatment Plant

Plant ‐ Generator Building

07/01/87 Fuel Pump(Day Tank) 34,903.00         34,903.00      ‐

Plant ‐ Primary Digester

07/01/87 Exhaust Fan (EF‐21) 2,397.00           2,397.00         ‐

07/01/87 Exhaust Fan (EF‐22) 1,798.00           1,798.00         ‐

07/01/07 Flowmeter 3,407.00           2,555.45         (851.55)            

07/01/08 Grinder 8,775.00           5,704.25         (3,070.75)         

07/01/87 Sludge Grinder 29,288.00         29,288.00      ‐

Total 110,685.00       106,310.80    (4,374.20)        

Total Tables A and B 148,330.00       142,605.88    1,641.83          
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE:  Consent Calendar: 
Amendment to District’s Joint 
Exercise of Powers Agreement with 
Marin County Flood Control District 

MEETING DATE:  December 14, 2015 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 6.e. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution No. 3095 Approving and Executing an 
Amendment to the District’s 1983 Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (lease agreement) 
with the Marin County Flood Control and Water Conservation District to allow removal of 
27.4 acres from the Agreement and revert it back to the Flood Control District. 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION: 

In June 1983 the District entered into a 40-year Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (JEPA) with 
Marin County Flood Control and Water Conservation District.  Under the terms of the Agreement, the 
District leased approximately 757 acres of property from the Flood Control District, for the sum of 
$745,300.00, for the purpose of constructing, operating and maintaining an agricultural irrigation 
reclamation facility and ranch lease project.   

In 2008, Stonetree Golf Club expressed an interest in subleasing a portion of the District’s leased 
property adjacent to the golf course for construction of a golf driving range.  The District Board of 
Directors, at their meeting of December 22, 2008, directed staff to initiate negotiations with Stonetree 
Golf Course.  However, at that time Stonetree did not pursue their request.   

In 2011, Stonetree indicated their interest in proceeding with the golf driving range project.  An 
Amendment to the JEPA with the Flood Control District was prepared to allow the Sanitary District to 
sublease 27.4 acres of leased property to Stonetree.  Marin County staff indicated verbal agreement 
with the proposed use. At their meeting of February 14, 2011, the District Board of Directors approved 
the JEPA Amendment.  Stonetree did not continue with the project at that time and the proposed 
Amendment was not processed by the County. 

Ownership of the golf club later changed to Bay Club, LLC, and in February 2015 Bay Club renewed 
the request to sublease the property for a driving range.  In negotiations with County Flood Control 
staff, it was determined that the County wishes to amend the JEPA to remove the 27.4-acre portion of 
property from the 1983 Sanitary District Agreement which the Flood Control District will then lease 
directly to Bay Club.  A JEPA Amendment to this effect has been received from the County, has been 
reviewed and approved by District Counsel Kent Alm, and is being presented to the Board for 
consideration at this meeting (Attachment 1).  The Flood Control District has agreed to repay a 
prorated amount of $5,221.87 to the Sanitary District, representing the proportionate value of the 27.4-
acre site for the remainder of the lease period.    

Removal of the 27.4 acres from the leased property will not adversely affect or interfere with the 
District’s irrigation and ranch lease operations.   Irrigation of the proposed golf driving range will be 
with recycled tertiary treated wastewater through North Marin Water District (NMWD). 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Amendment to Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement. 
2. Resolution No. 3095. 

BUDGET INFORMATION: The District will receive $5,221.87 from Marin County Flood Control District 
based on cost per acre calculations for the remaining lease term for 27.4 acres.  

DEPT. MGR.: ssk GENERAL MANAGER: SSK 

 



RETURN TO: 
County of Marin 
Department of Public Works 
Real Estate Division 
P.O. Box 4186, Civic Center Branch 
San Rafael, CA 94913-4186 
Attn: Eric Lueder 

AMENDMENT TO JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this   day of   , 2015 by and between the 
NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT, a public corporation, hereinafter referred to as “SANITARY 
DISTRICT”, and the MARIN COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of California, hereinafter referred to as “FLOOD 
CONTROL DISTRICT”. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, SANITARY DISTRICT and FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT have entered into a Joint 
Exercise of Powers Agreement (JPA), dated June 14, 1983, and recorded, for the lease of real 
property situated in the Novato Creek Bay Plain, in the City of Novato, County of Marin, State of 
California as designated therein; and 

WHEREAS, FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT leases Parcels F-1, F-2, and F-3, as depicted on the 
map accompanying the said Agreement, to SANITARY DISTRICT for maintaining and operating 
an agricultural irrigation reclamation project as a means of disposal of treated wastewater 
effluent; and 

WHEREAS, SANITARY DISTRICT and FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT jointly agree on an 
amendment to the said 1983 Agreement to allow removal of a 27.4-acre portion of Parcel F-1 
from the original lease for the purpose of establishing a direct lease agreement between the 
FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT and Bay Club Company for a 27.4-acre golf course driving 
range; and 

WHEREAS, it is of mutual benefit and interest to the parties hereto that SANITARY DISTRICT 
and FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT agree upon this Amendment to the original 1983 
Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED as follows: 

1. For and in consideration of the conditions hereinafter, this Amendment shall not be
effective until such time that the FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT enters into a new lease
agreement with Bay Club Company for use of the 27.4-acre portion.  Until such time
that said new lease agreement is made, the original 1983 Agreement shall remain in full
effect.

2. At the time this Amendment is in effect pursuant to Item 1 above, SANITARY DISTRICT
hereby forfeits its lease for the 27.4-acre portion of parcel F-1.

3. At the time this Amendment is in effect pursuant to Item 1 above, the FLOOD
CONTROL DISTRICT shall pay to the SANITARY DISTRICT a one-time payment for
the fair prorated proportional value of the 27.4-acres in the amount of $56.15 per month
times the number of remaining months in the original 1983 Agreement.
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4. At the time this Amendment is in effect pursuant to Item 1 above, the SANITARY
DISTRICT shall no longer be responsible for ordinary maintenance (as defined in Item-
3J of the original 1983 Agreement) of any dikes and levees that are along the immediate
boundary line of the 27.4-acre portion of land (Attachments "A" and "B").

5. At the time this Amendment is in effect pursuant to Item 1 above, the FLOOD
CONTROL DISTRICT shall, hold the SANITARY DISTRICT, its officers, agents and
employees harmless for any damage, penalty, fine, judgment or expense suffered,
imposed on, assessed to or incurred by the FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT or Bay Club
Company, including attorney’s fees and court costs arising out of the FLOOD
CONTROL DISTRICT or Bay Club Company’s use and occupancy of the 27.4-acre
portion of land, and FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT shall reimburse SANITARY
DISTRICT , its officers, agents and employees for any damage, penalty, fine, judgment
or expense so suffered, imposed, assessed or incurred.

6. At the time this Amendment is in effect pursuant to Item 1 above, other than for use to
access any portion of the remaining leased land, SANITARY DISTRICT shall have no
other rights for use on the 27.4-acre portion of land.

7. SANITARY DISTRICT shall retain all rights, access and responsibilities for the
remaining portions of leased land in the original 1983 Agreement.  Additionally, all other
provisions established and agreed upon within the original 1983 Agreement shall
remain in place for remainder of the agreed upon period ending on July 1, 2023.

8. Use of the 27.4-acre portion of land shall not unreasonably interfere with the
SANITARY DISTRICT’s use of the remaining property leased  pursuant to  the original
1983 Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement as of the date first 
hereinabove written. 

Approved as to Form: MARIN COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL AND 
WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT: 

By: 
County Counsel 

Judy Arnold, Board of Supervisors 

ATTEST: 

Clerk 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT: 

President, Board of Directors 

2555887.1 Secretary 



Attachment "A"



Attachment "B" 



RESOLUTION NO. 3095 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING  
EXECUTION OF AMENDMENT TO JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN MARIN COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
AND NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 

By Resolution No. 1994, on June 14, 1983, Novato Sanitary District (hereinafter 

“Sanitary District”) executed a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (JEPA) with the Marin 

County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (hereinafter “Flood Control District”).  

Under the terms of the JEPA the Sanitary District entered into a 40-year lease agreement, for 

the sum of $745,300.00, for Flood Control District property, comprising approximately 757 

acres, for the purpose of constructing, operating, and maintaining an agricultural irrigation 

reclamation and ranch lease project; and   

WHEREAS, a request has been received by the Flood Control District to amend the 

JEPA to remove a 27.4 acre portion of the property from the Sanitary District lease which Flood 

Control District will lease to Bay Club/Stonetree, LLC, for the construction of a golf driving 

range; and 

WHEREAS, the Flood Control District has agreed to repay to the Sanitary District a 

prorated amount of $5,221.87, representing the proportionate value of the 27.4 acre site for the 

remainder of the lease period; and 

WHEREAS, removal of the 27.4 acre portion of the leased property from the JEPA will 

not adversely affect or interfere with the Sanitary District’s irrigation and ranch lease operations 

on the remainder of the leased property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of Novato Sanitary 

District does hereby approve adoption of said Amendment to the Joint Exercise of Powers 

Agreement between the Sanitary District and Flood Control District and authorizes the Board 

President and District General Manager-Chief Engineer to execute the Agreement Amendment 

on behalf of Novato Sanitary District.  

*   *   *   *   *   *   * 
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I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted by the 
Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District, Marin County, California, at a meeting thereof 
duly held on the 14th day of December, 2015, by the following vote: 

  

 AYES, and in favor thereof, Directors:          

 NOES, Directors:            

 ABSENT, Directors:           

 

             
        _________________________ 
        Jean Mariani  
        President, Board of Directors 
        Novato Sanitary District 
 

COUNTERSIGNED: 

 
______________________________                                                
Sandeep Karkal 
Board Secretary, Board of Directors 
Novato Sanitary District 
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE: Consent Calendar: Mendocino 
Lane SME (Ravicz), Approval of Sewer 
Main Extension project plans. 

 

MEETING DATE: December 14, 2015 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 6.f. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Project Plans for Sewer Main Extension – Mendocino Lane 
(Ravicz). 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:  
  
The project is located at the northerly end of Mendocino Lane. The project scope is to extend the 
public six-inch main within Mendocino Lane approximately seventy feet into the property at 45 
Mendocino Lane (property owners: Arthur E. and Patricia Ravicz).  

A sanitary sewer easement is required for the portion of sewer main to be extended within the 
subject property. The sanitary sewer easement has been drafted and notarized, and staff has 
separately prepared Board Resolution No. 3096 for its acceptance by the District Board (see the 
following Agenda Item No. 6.g.). 

The elements of the proposed sewer main extension are as follows: 

70 Lineal Feet of New 6” PVC, 
1 EA. relocated standard rodding inlet (RI), and 
12 Lineal Feet of New 4” PVC Lateral Sewer 

The project is requesting a variance to use a six-inch sewer pipe instead of the District’s Standard 
eight-inch pipe. The request is due to the fact that the project is connecting to an existing six-inch 
main at the end of the tributary basin. It is assumed that in the future only five additional dwellings 
may make connection to the proposed SME. Staff recommends approval of the project plans and 
requested variance. 
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  This project will increase the District’s net assets by $11,000.00. 

 
DEPT. MGR.: esb GENERAL MANAGER: SSK 
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE: Consent Calendar: 

Mendocino Lane SME (Ravicz) – 
Acceptance of Grant of Sanitary 
Sewer Easement (SSE). 

MEETING DATE: Dec 14, 2015 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 6.g. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution No. 3096: A Resolution Authorizing 
Acceptance of a Sanitary Sewer Easement from Arthur E. and Patricia Ravicz, 45 Mendocino 
Avenue. 

 
SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:  
  
This agenda item is for acceptance of a Sanitary Sewer Easement for the Mendocino Lane 
Sewer Main Extension (SME) – Ravicz. 
 
The dedicated ten-foot wide by twenty-two ft. long sanitary sewer easement will allow for 
District access for maintenance and repair. The grant of a sanitary sewer easement is over 
private property located at 45 Mendocino Avenue. 
 
 

 
  

ATTACHEMENTS: 
1. Resolution No. 3096. 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  Upon acceptance, this project will result in a change in the 
District’s net assets by $2,200. 
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RESOLUTION NO. 3096 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF EASEMENT  
FROM  

ARTHUR E. RAVICZ AND PATRICIA RAVICZ 

TO 
NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 

 WHEREAS, a permanent easement is needed for the purpose of constructing, maintaining, servicing 

and/or replacing sanitary sewer facilities for the parcel listed below; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Novato Sanitary District that 

the District shall accept the easement offered to it by the owners of the parcel(s) hereinafter listed: 

Assessor’s Parcel No. Property Owner 

APN 132-051-53  Arthur E. Ravicz and Patricia Ravicz 

*     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     * 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted  

by the Board of Directors of Novato Sanitary District, Marin County, California, at a meeting  

thereof held on the 14th day of December, 2015, by the following vote: 

 AYES, and in favor thereof, Members: 

 NOES, Members: 

 ABSENT, Members: 

__________________________ 
Jean Mariani, 
President, Board of Directors  
Novato Sanitary District 

ATTEST: 

_______________________ 
Sandeep Karkal 
Board Secretary, Board of Directors 
Novato Sanitary District 
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE: Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR) for the Years 
Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, 
including Audited Financial Statements. 

MEETING DATE: December 14, 2015 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 7.a. & b. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Finance Committee report and recommendation, and 
accept the CAFR for fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, including audited financial 
statements. 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
 
The District’s annual financial audit for the year ended June 30, 2015 has been completed by the 
District’s independent external auditors, Maze and Associates.   
 
Maze and Associates presented a draft of their report to the District’s Finance Committee at its 
November 30, 2015 meeting. Ms. Vikki Rodriguez, CPA, with Maze and Associates attended the 
Committee meeting, and presented the audit findings and opinion to the Committee. Following that 
meeting, Maze and Associates completed and provided the final audit report.  
 
In summary, the auditors have issued an unmodified opinion (cleanest possible opinion) on the 
District’s audited financial report for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014.  
  
A copy of the CAFR including the audited financial statements is attached. The CAFR also provides 
statistical information (pages 47 to 61) on the District and its operations over the past ten years 
including financial trends and demographic data. Ms. Rodriguez of Maze and Associates will also be in 
attendance at this meeting, and present the audit findings and opinion to the Board. 
 
Additionally, for the fifth year in a row, the District will submit its CAFR to the Government of Finance 
Officers Association (GFOA) for its Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 
(CAFR Award). The District has received this recognition from the GFOA for the last four years. 
 
The Finance Committee recommends that, subject to minor edits, the Board receive and accept the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) including the audited financial statements for the 
fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) including audited financial statements for 
fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014. 
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Leaders in Protecting the Environment 
 

Novato Sanitary District provides wastewater collection, treatment, recycling  
and disposal services for the community of Novato, California.  In addition, the 
District is responsible for refuse disposal, recycling, and greenwaste collection 

through its franchise collector, Novato Disposal Service. 
 
 

Novato Sanitary District 
Board of Directors as of June 30, 2015 

 
 
 

Name 
 

Title 
 Elected/ 

Appointed 
 First Seated 

on Board 
 Current 

Term 

Jean Mariani  President  Elected  5/2011  12/11-12/15 

William C. Long  Director  Elected  12/2001  12/13-12/17 

Gerald Peters  Director  Elected  12/2011  12/11-12/15 

Gary Butler  Director  Appointed  5/2014  05/14-12/15 

Brant Miller  Director  Elected  12/2013  12/13-12/17 
 
 
 

Sandeep Karkal, Manager - Engineer 
500 Davidson Street 

Novato, California 94945 
(415) 892-1694 – www.novatosan.com 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
 
Board of Directors 
Novato Sanitary District 
Novato, California 
 
Report on Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Novato Sanitary District (District), 
as of and for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.   
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the District as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and changes in the financial position and 
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
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Emphasis of a Matter 
 
Management adopted the provisions of the following Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statements, which became effective during the year ended June 30, 2015 and required a prior period 
adjustment of net position as discussed in Note 1O to the financial statements: 
 

Statement No. 68 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions 
 

Statement No. 71 – Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement 
Date 

 
The emphasis of this matter does not constitute a modification to our opinion. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information  
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis, and other Required Supplementary Information, be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or 
historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as a whole.  The Introductory Section and 
Statistical Section listed in the Table of Contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are 
not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The Introductory and Statistical Sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 
 
 
 
 
Pleasant Hill, California 
November 12, 2015 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial 
performance of the Novato Sanitary District (District) provides an introduction to the financial 
statements of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 and 2014.  The two-year 
presentation is provided for comparative purposes.  We encourage readers to consider the 
information presented here in conjunction with the basic financial statements and related notes, 
which follow this section. 

Financial Highlights  

 In 2015, the District’s assets decreased .7% or $1,569,985 to $203,427,403. In 2014, the 
District’s assets decreased 2.5% or $5,308,920 to $204,997,388. 

 In 2015, the District’s net position decreased .9% or $984,702 to $105,599,405. In 2014, 
the District’s net position decreased 1.2% or $1,339,359 to $106,584,607.   

 In 2015, the District’s operating revenues increased 3.6% or $523,221 due to a rate 
increase of approximately 3.6% (approved in June of 2012). In 2014, the District’s 
operating revenues increased 3.3% or $507,570.  

 In 2015, The District’s other non-operating expenses decreased 58% or $3,747,306 due 
to the prior year retirement of pump station buildings and equipment. In 2014, the 
District’s other non-operating expenses increased 111% or $3,396,869. 

Required Financial Statements 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position, 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Statement of Cash Flows 
provide information about the activities and performance of the District using accounting 
methods similar to those used by private sector companies.   

The Statement of Net Position includes all of the District’s investments in resources (assets) and 
the obligations to creditors (liabilities).  It also provides the basis for computing a rate of return, 
evaluating the capital structure of the District and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility 
of the District.  All of the current year’s revenue and expenses are accounted for in the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.  This statement measures the 
success of the District’s operations over the past year and can be used to determine if the 
District has successfully recovered all of its costs through its rates and other charges. This 
statement can also be used to evaluate profitability and credit worthiness. The final required 
financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows, which provides information about the 
District’s cash receipts and cash payments during the reporting period. The Statement of Cash 
Flows reports cash receipts, cash payments and net changes in cash resulting from operations, 
investing, non-capital financing, and capital and related financing activities and provides 
answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what 
was the change in cash balance during the reporting period. 

Financial Analysis of the District 

One of the most important questions that can be asked about the District’s finances is: “Is the 
District better off or worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position 
and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position provide information 
about the District that helps answer this question.  
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These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which 
is similar to the accounting method used by most private sector companies. All of the current 
year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when the cash is received 
or paid. 

These two statements report the District’s net position and changes therein. You can think of the 
District’s net position – the difference between assets and liabilities – as one way to measure 
the District’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the 
District’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or 
deteriorating. However, one also needs to consider other non-financial factors such as changes 
in economic conditions, population growth, zoning, and new or changed government legislation, 
such as changes in Federal and State wastewater standards. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be 
found on pages 15 through 41. 

Condensed Statements of Net Position 

2015 2014 Change 2013-Restated Change

Assets:
Current assets $ 20,225,134       20,783,974       (558,840)          23,453,892         (2,669,918)       
Capital assets, net 182,916,368     184,213,414     (1,297,046)       186,852,416       (2,639,002)       
Deferred Outflow of Resources (Note 10) 285,901           285,901           -                     -                  

Total assets 203,427,403     204,997,388     (1,569,985)       210,306,308       (5,308,920)       
Liabilities:

Current liabilities 6,757,802         7,172,441         (414,639)          6,856,759           315,682           
Non-current liabilities 90,164,596       91,240,840       (1,076,244)       95,526,083         (4,285,243)       
Deferred Inflows of Resources(Note 10) 905,600           905,600           -                     -                  

Total liabilities 97,827,998       98,413,281       (585,283)          102,382,842       (3,969,561)       
Net Position as restated (Note 8)

Net investment in capital assets 94,572,835       94,531,379       41,456             97,636,900         (3,105,521)       
Unrestricted 11,026,570       12,052,728       (1,026,158)       10,286,566         1,766,162         

Total net position 105,599,405     106,584,107     (984,702)          107,923,466       (1,339,359)       

Total liabilities and net position $ 203,427,403     204,997,388     (1,569,985)       210,306,308       (5,308,920)        

 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government entity’s 
financial position. In the case of the District, assets of the District exceeded liabilities by 
$105,599,405 and $106,584,107 as of June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014, respectively. 

By far the largest portion of the District’s net position (90% as of June 30, 2015 and 2014) 
reflects the District’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) less any 
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital 
assets to provide services to customers within the District’s service area; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending.  

At the end of fiscal years 2015 and 2014, the District showed a positive balance in its 
unrestricted net position of $11,026,570 and $12,052,728 respectively, which may be utilized in 
future years.  See Note 8 for further discussion. 
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

2015 2014 Change 2013-Restated Change

Revenues:
Operating revenues $ 16,372,320       15,849,099       523,221           15,341,529         507,570           
Non-operating revenues 2,198,894         2,114,622         84,272             1,980,806           133,816           

Total revenues 18,571,214       17,963,721       607,493           17,322,335         641,386           
Expenses:

Operating expenses 7,894,306         8,322,651         (428,345)          8,103,790           218,861           
Depreciation and amortization 5,201,451         5,092,355         109,096           4,602,353           490,002           
Non-operating expenses 2,703,321         6,450,627         (3,747,306)       3,053,758           3,396,869         

Total expenses 15,799,078       19,865,633       (4,066,555)       15,759,901         4,105,732         

Net income before capital contributions 2,772,136         (1,901,912)       4,674,048         1,562,434           (3,464,346)       
Capital contributions 542,290           562,553           (20,263)            146,949              415,604           

Change in net position 3,314,426         (1,339,359)       4,653,785         1,709,383           (3,048,742)       
Net position, beginning of year 106,584,107     107,923,466     (1,339,359)       112,988,251       (5,064,785)       
Prior period adjustment(Note 10) (4,299,128)       (4,299,128)       (6,774,168)          6,774,168         
Net position, end of year $ 105,599,405     106,584,107     (984,702)          107,923,466       (1,339,359)        

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes of net position shows how the District’s net 
position changed during the fiscal years. In the case of the District, net position decreased by 
$984,702 and $1,339,359 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. A 
closer examination of the sources of changes in net position reveals that: 
 

 In 2015, the District’s sewer service charges increased 3.6% or $548,801 primarily due 
to the rate increase of approximately 3.6%. This rate increase was part of a four-year 
series of rate increases approved in June 2012. 

 In 2015, the District’s net position decreased by $4,299,128 to account for the District’s 
unfunded pension liability with the June 15, 2014 implementation of Government 
Accounting Standards Board Statement 68 (GASB 68). 

 In 2015, the District’s non-operating expenditures decreased by $3,747,306 from retiring 
pump station equipment and buildings in the prior year. 

Operating and Non-Operating Revenues 

2015 2014 Change 2013-Restated Change

Operating revenues:
Sewer service charges $ 15,706,704       15,157,903       548,801           14,670,826         487,077           
Other service charges 231,594           254,797           (23,203)            305,154              (50,357)            
Permit, inspection and other fees 44,494             39,023             5,471               34,505               4,518               
Recycled water facility 91,942             99,790             (7,848)              33,458               66,332             
AB939 – solid waste programs 297,586           297,586           -                  297,586              -                  

Total operating revenues 16,372,320       15,849,099       523,221           15,341,529         507,570           
Non-operating revenue:

Property taxes 1,999,816         1,941,241         58,575             1,795,781           145,460           
Franchise fees 49,768             51,019             (1,251)              46,170               4,849               
Rental revenue 92,829             76,689             16,140             67,246               9,443               
Interest earnings 43,117             45,673             (2,556)              67,050               (21,377)            
Gain on sale/disposition of assets 13,364             -                  13,364             2,529                 (2,529)              
Other non-operating revenues -                  -                  -                  2,030                 (2,030)              

Total non-operating revenues 2,198,894         2,114,622         84,272             1,980,806           133,816           
Total revenues $ 18,571,214       17,963,721       607,493           17,322,335         641,386            

Total revenues increased by $607,493 and $641,386 in fiscal years 2015 and 2014, 
respectively. 
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Operating and Non-Operating Expenses 

2015 2014 Change 2013-Restated Change

Operating expenses:
Collection system $ 1,277,022         1,188,408         88,614             1,022,006           166,402           
Treatment plant 2,757,514         2,562,314         195,200           2,561,301           1,013               
Wastewater reclamation and disposal 398,118           418,748           (20,630)            423,670              (4,922)              
Laboratory and monitoring 555,215           534,959           20,256             572,718              (37,759)            
Sewers and pump stations 686,789           668,841           17,948             668,427              414                  
Recycled water facility 100,354           104,837           (4,483)              31,301               73,536             
AB939 – solid waste programs 289,586           320,938           (31,352)            318,616              2,322               
Administrative and engineering 2,173,241         2,523,606         (350,365)          2,505,751           17,855             
Pension Expense (343,533)          -                  (343,533)          -                     -                  

Total operating expenses 7,894,306         8,322,651         (428,345)          8,103,790           218,861           

Depreciation and amortization exp. 5,201,451         5,092,355         109,096           4,602,353           490,002           
Non-operating expenses:

Interest expense 2,567,765         2,678,227         (110,462)          2,712,097           (33,870)            
Deferred charges amortization -                  -                  -                  -                     -                  
Loss on sale/disposition of assets -                  3,502,140         (3,502,140)       -                     3,502,140         
Other non-operating expenses 135,556           270,260           (134,704)          341,661              (71,401)            

Total non-operating expenses 2,703,321         6,450,627         (3,747,306)       3,053,758           3,396,869         
Total expenses $ 15,799,078       19,865,633       (4,066,555)       15,759,901         4,105,732          

Total expenses decreased by $4,066,555 and increased by $4,105,732 in fiscal years 2015 and 
2014, respectively, primarily from a loss on sale/disposition of assets of $3,502,140 (from 
retirement of pump station buildings and equipment), recognized in FYE 2014. 

Capital Asset Administration 

Changes in capital assets amounts for 2015 were as follows:
Balance Transfers/ Reclassifications Balance

2014 Additions Deletions and Restatement 2015
Capital assets:

Non-depreciable assets $ 10,159,610       2,331,010         (975,774)          11,514,846       
Depreciable assets 229,640,917     2,554,893         (148,330)          232,047,480     
Accumulated depreciation (55,587,113)      (5,201,451)       142,606           (60,645,958)      

Total capital assets ,net $ 184,213,414     (315,548)          (981,498)          -                     182,916,368     

Changes in capital assets amounts for 2014 were as follows:
Balance Transfers/ Reclassifications Balance

2013 as restated Additions Deletions and Restatement 2014
Capital assets:

Non-depreciable assets $ 8,362,618         4,285,520         (2,488,528)       10,159,610       
Depreciable assets 229,870,767     1,733,721         (1,963,571)       229,640,917     
Accumulated depreciation (51,380,969)      (5,092,355)       886,211           (55,587,113)      

Total capital assets ,net $ 186,852,416     926,886           (3,565,888)       -                     184,213,414      

 
At the end of fiscal year 2015 and 2014, the District’s investment in capital assets amounted to 
$182,916,368 and $184,213,414 (net of accumulated depreciation), respectively. This 
investment in capital assets includes land, land improvements, sewer collection and outfall 
system, buildings and structures, equipment, vehicles and construction-in-process, etc. Major 
capital asset additions during the year include improvements to portions of the District’s sewer 
collection and treatment system and pump stations (see Note 4 for further details). 
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Debt Administration 

Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2015 were as follows:
Balance Balance

2014 Additions Deletions 2015
Loan payable 74,366,047       -                  (3,594,171)       70,771,876         
2011 Certificates Of Particiption 20,120,000       -                  (855,000)          19,265,000         

Total long-term debt $ 94,486,047       -                  (4,449,171)       90,036,876         

Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2014 were as follows:
Balance Balance

2013 Additions Deletions 2014
Long-term debt:

Loan payable $ 77,875,980       -                  (3,509,933)       74,366,047         
2011 Certificates Of Particiption 20,950,000       -                  (830,000)          20,120,000         

Total long-term debt $ 98,825,980       -                  (4,339,933)       94,486,047          

See Note 6 for further details of the District’s long-term debt. 

 
Conditions Affecting Current Financial Position 

Management is unaware of any conditions which could have a significant impact on the 
District’s current financial position, net position, or operating results based on past, present and 
future anticipated events. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s funding sources, customers, 
stakeholders and other interested parties with an overview of the District’s financial operations 
and financial condition.  Should the reader have questions regarding the information included in 
this report or wish to request additional financial information, please contact the District’s 
General Manager-Chief Engineer, or the District’s Finance Officer, at 500 Davidson Street, 
Novato, California, 94945.  
 

******** 
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $18,102,303 $15,612,749
Restricted - cash and investments (Note 2) 1,693,343               4,804,012
Accounts receivable, net (Note 3) 373,490 300,683
Accrued interest receivable 3,702 11,352
Prepaid expenses and other deposits 52,296 55,178

Total current assets 20,225,134 20,783,974

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets - not being depreciated (Note 4) 11,514,846 10,159,610
Capital assets - being depreciated, net (Note 4) 171,401,522 174,053,804

Total non-current assets 182,916,368 184,213,414

TOTAL ASSETS 203,141,502 204,997,388

Pension related (Note 10) 285,901

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 749,097 1,235,959
Customer deposits and unearned revenue 43,006 43,006
Restricted - special assessment payable 179,541 163,271
Accrued interest payable 1,187,241 1,241,058
Long-term liabilities - due within one year:

Compensated absences (Note 5) 33,486 39,976
State Revolving Fund Loan payable (Note 6) 3,680,431 3,594,171
Certificates of Participation (Note 6) 885,000 855,000

Total current liabilities 6,757,802 7,172,441

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term liabilities - due in more than one year:

Compensated absences (Note 5) 100,459 119,928
State Revolving Fund Loan payable (Note 6) 67,091,445 70,771,876
Certificates of Participation (Note 6) 18,380,000 19,265,000
Other post-employment benefits payable (Note 7) 1,256,796 1,084,036
Collective net pension liability (Note 10) 3,335,896

Total non-current liabilities 90,164,596 91,240,840

TOTAL LIABILITIES 96,922,398 98,413,281

Pension Related (Note 10) 905,600

NET POSITION (Note 8)
Net investment in capital assets 94,572,835 94,531,379
Unrestricted 11,026,570 12,052,728

TOTAL NET POSITION $105,599,405 $106,584,107
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014
OPERATING REVENUES

Sewer service charges $15,706,704 $15,157,903
Other service charges 231,594 254,797
Permit, inspection and other fees 44,494 39,023
Recycled water facility 91,942 99,790
AB939 - solid waste programs 297,586 297,586

Total operating revenues 16,372,320 15,849,099

OPERATING EXPENSES

Collection system 1,277,022 1,188,408
Treatment plant 2,757,514 2,562,314
Reclamation and disposal 398,118 418,748
Laboratory and monitoring 555,215 534,959
Pump stations 686,789 668,841
AB939 - solid waste programs 289,586 320,938
Recycled water 100,354 104,837
Administrative and engineering 2,173,241 2,523,606
Pension expense (343,533)

Total operating expenses 7,894,306 8,322,651

Operating income before depreciation 8,478,014 7,526,448

Depreciation  (Note 4) (5,201,451) (5,092,355)

OPERATING INCOME 3,276,563 2,434,093

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Property taxes 1,999,816 1,941,241
Franchise fees 49,768 51,019
Rental revenue 92,829 76,689
Interest income 43,117 45,673
Interest expense (2,567,765) (2,678,227)
Gain (loss) on sale/disposition of capital assets 13,364 (3,502,140)
Other non-operating expenses (135,556) (270,260)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses), net (504,427) (4,336,005)

Net income (loss) before capital contributions 2,772,136 (1,901,912)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Connection fees 291,565 343,773
Capital contributions 250,725 202,530
Capital grants 16,250

Total capital contributions 542,290 562,553

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 3,314,426 (1,339,359)

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 106,584,107 107,923,466

Prior period adjustment due to implementation 
of GASB 68 & 71 (Note 1O) (4,299,128)

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $105,599,405 $106,584,107

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from customers for sewer service charges and services $16,442,110 $16,220,668
Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for salaries, wages and benefits (2,351,260) (1,980,190)
Cash paid to vendors and suppliers for materials and services (6,343,044) (6,191,452)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 7,747,806 8,049,026

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Property taxes 1,999,816 1,941,241

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 1,999,816 1,941,241

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (3,659,404) (5,816,711)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 19,088 63,748
Capital contributions 291,565 360,023
Principal payments on long-term debt (4,449,171) (4,339,933)
Interest payments on long-term debt (2,621,582) (2,730,721)

Cash Flows (used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities (10,419,504) (12,463,594)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest earnings 50,767 47,722

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 50,767 47,722

NET CASH FLOWS (621,115) (2,425,605)

Cash, beginning of year 20,416,761 22,842,366

Cash, end of year $19,795,646 $20,416,761

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to statement of net position:
Cash and cash equivalents $18,102,303 $15,612,749
Restricted - cash and cash equivalents 1,693,343 4,804,012

Total cash and cash equivalents $19,795,646 $20,416,761

(Continued)
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income $3,276,563 $2,434,093

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 5,201,451 5,092,355
Other non-operating revenues 142,597 127,708
Other non-operating expenses (135,556) (270,260)

Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in assets and deferred outflows of resources: 

Accounts receivable - sewer services (72,807) 243,861
Prepaid expenses and other deposits 2,882 (1,597)
Pension related deferred outflows of resources (285,901)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities and deferred inflows of resources:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (486,862) 257,010
Customer deposits and deferred revenue 5,000
Restricted - special assessment payable 16,270 (2,806)
Compensated absences (25,959) (1,063)
Other post-employment benefits payable 172,760 164,725
Collective net pension liability (963,232)
Pension related deferred inflows of resources 905,600

Total adjustments 4,471,243 5,614,933

Net cash provided by operating activities $7,747,806 $8,049,026

Schedule of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:
Change in fair value of investments $4,602
Capital contributions $250,725 202,530

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 
 

NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

 
A.  Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity 

 
The Novato Sanitary District (District) is a separate governmental unit established as a Special 
District of the State of California, created in 1925. The District provides sewage collection, 
treatment, reclamation, and disposal services to an area of about 25 square miles in and around 
the City of Novato in Marin County, California. Revenues are derived principally from sewer 
service charges collected from commercial and residential customers within the District's service 
area. The District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors who serve four year terms. 
 

B.  Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 
 
 Basic Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is the 
acknowledged standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting standards 
followed by governmental entities in the U.S.A. 

 
The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations 
that are financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the 
intent of the District is that the costs of providing wastewater service, treatment and collection to 
its service area on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges 
(sewer service charges), capital grants and similar funding. Revenues and expenses are 
recognized on the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the accounting 
period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period incurred, regardless of 
when the related cash flows take place.  
 
Operating revenues and expenses, such as sewer service charges as well as treatment and 
collection charges, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the 
District. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially 
equal values. Management, administration and depreciation expenses are also considered 
operating expenses. Other revenues and expenses not included in the above categories are 
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.  

 
C.  Use of Estimates 

 
The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported changes in net position during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
D. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
Substantially all of the District's cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The District 
considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash 
equivalents.  
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 
 

NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (Continued) 

 
E. Investments 

 
Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income 
reported for that fiscal year. Investment income includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, 
and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of investments. 

 
F. Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 

 
The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. When management 
deems customer accounts uncollectible, the District uses the allowance method for the reservation 
and write-off of those accounts. 

 
G. Property Taxes and Sewer Assessments 

 
The Marin County Assessor's Office assesses all real and personal property within the County 
each year. The Marin County Tax Collector's Office bills and collects the District's share of 
property taxes and assessments. The Marin County Treasurer's Office remits current and 
delinquent property tax collections to the District throughout the year. Property tax in California 
is levied in accordance with Article 13A of the State Constitution at one percent (l%) of 
countywide assessed valuations. 
 
Property taxes receivable at year-end are related to property taxes collected by the County which 
have not been credited to the District's cash balance as of June 30. The property tax calendar is as 
follows: 
 

Lien date March 1 
Levy date July 1 
Due dates November 1 and March 1 
Collection dates December 10 and April 10 

 

H.  Prepaid Expenses 
 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and 
are recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial statements.  

 
I. Capital Assets 

 
Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. District policy has set 
the capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $5,000. Contributed assets are recorded 
at estimated fair market value at the date of donation and/or historical cost. Upon retirement or 
other disposition of capital assets, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed 
from the respective balances and any gains or losses are recognized. Depreciation is recorded on a 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:  
 

• Sewer system improvements - 15 years 
• Sewer collection and outfall system - 50 to 100 years 
• Buildings and structures - 15 to 50 years 
• Sewer facilities equipment - 5 to 35 years 
• Equipment - 5 to 35 years 
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 
 

NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (Continued) 

 
J. Compensated Absences 

 
The District's policy is to permit employees to accumulate earned vacation up to a total of 240 
hours during their first 15 years of service and 320 hours after 15 years of service. Upon 
termination of employment, employees are paid all unused vacation and forfeit any unused sick 
time unless the employee retires from the District in which case unused sick leave is counted 
100% towards CalPERS service credits. 

 
K. Sewer Service Charges 

 
The majority of sewer service charges are billed annually on the County of Marin's property tax 
bills.  

 
L. Capital Contributions 
 

Capital contributions represent cash and capital asset additions contributed to the District by 
property owners, granting agencies or real estate developers desiring services that require capital 
expenditures or connection to the District's system. 
 

M. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred outflows 
of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 
 

N. Net Position 
 

The financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net positions are categorized as 
follows:  

 

 Net Investment in Capital Assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets, 
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any outstanding debt against the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of those assets. 

 

 Restricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of constraints placed on 
net position use through external constraints imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

 

 Unrestricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of net position that do 
not meet the definition of restricted or net investment in capital assets. 
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 
 

NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES (Continued) 

 
O. Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Pronouncements  
 

GASB Statement No. 68 – In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27.  The requirements of 
this Statement will improve the decision-usefulness of information in employer and governmental 
nonemployer contributing entity financial reports and will enhance its value for assessing 
accountability and interperiod equity by requiring recognition of the entire net pension liability and 
a more comprehensive measure of pension expense.  The provisions of this Statement are effective 
for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2014, therefore, the District 
implemented this Statement in fiscal year ending June 30, 2015, which required an adjustment to 
reduce the District’s beginning net position by $4,299,128.  The financial statements for fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2014 could not be restated as the information required to do so was not readily 
available.  See Note 10 for additional information.   
 
GASB Statement No. 69 – In 2014, the GASB issued Statement No. 69, Government 
Combinations and Disposals of Government Operation. This Statement requires disclosures to be 
made about government combinations and disposals of government operations to enable financial 
statement users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of those transactions. The provisions of 
this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2013, 
therefore, the District will implement this Statement in fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. This 
Statement did not have any impact on the financial statements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 70 – In 2013, the GASB issued Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Nonexchange Finance Guarantees.  This Statement requires a government that 
extends a nonexchange financial guarantee to recognize a liability when qualitative factors and 
historical data, if any, indicate that it is more than likely than not the government will be required to 
make a payment on that guarantee.  The provisions of this Statement are effective for reporting 
periods beginning after June 15, 2013, therefore, the District implemented this statement for fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2015, and had no impact on the financial statements. 
 
GASB Statement No. 71 – In 2014, the GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for 
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 
68. The requirements of this Statement will eliminate the source of a potential significant 
understatement of restated beginning net position and expense in the first year of implementation of 
Statement 68 in the accrual-basis financial statements of employers and non-employer contributing 
entities. This benefit will be achieved without the imposition of significant additional costs. The 
provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 
15, 2014, therefore, the District implemented this Statement in fiscal year ending June 30, 2015, 
along with GASB 68 as discussed above. 
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 
 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, are classified in the accompanying financial statements 
as follows: 

2015 2014

Cash and cash equivalents $18,102,303 $15,612,749
Restricted cash and investments 1,693,343 4,804,012

Total Cash and Investments $19,795,646 $20,416,761

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, consist of the following:

2015 2014

Held by District:
Cash on hand $472 $828
Deposits with financial institutions 42,513 206,637
Local Agency Investment Fund 18,059,318 15,405,284

Held by Fiscal Agent:
Deposits with financial institutions 1,693,343 1,697,906
Local Agency Investment Fund 3,106,106

Total Cash and Investments $19,795,646 $20,416,761
 

 

A. Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District's Investment 
Policy  
 

 

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the District in accordance 
with the California Government Code (or the District's investment policy, where more 
restrictive). The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the 
District's investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and 
concentration of credit risk. 

Authorized Investment Type
State and Local Agency Bonds, Notes and 5 years 100% None
Registered State bonds, Notes and Warrants 5 years 100% None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years 100% None
Federal Agency Securities 5 years 100% None
Banker’s Acceptances 270 days 40% 30%
Prime Commercial Paper 180 days A-1 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years AA 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year 100% None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92/30 20% of base None
Medium-term Notes 5 years AA 30% None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 15% 10%
Mortgage Pass-through Securities N/A 30% None

California Local Agency Investment Fund N/A
$40 million 
per account None

Passbook Savings Account Demand Deposits N/A 100% None

Maximum 
Investment in 

One Issuer

Minimum 
Credit 
Quality

Maximum 
Percentage 
of Portfolio

Maximu
m 

Maturity
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 
 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
B.  Investments Authorized by the District’s Debt Issues 
 

The District must maintain required amounts of cash and investments with trustees or fiscal 
agents under the terms of certain debt issues. These funds are unexpended bond proceeds or are 
pledged reserves to be used if the District fails to meet its obligations under these debt issues.  
The California Government Code requires these funds to be invested in accordance with District 
resolutions, bond indentures or State statutes. The table below identifies the investment types that 
are authorized for investments held by fiscal agents. The bond indentures contain no limitations for 
the maximum investment in any one issuer or the maximum percentage of the portfolio that may be 
invested in any one investment type. The table also identifies certain provisions related to maturities 
and credit ratings, where applicable, of these investments: 
 

Minimum
Maximum Credit

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality (per S&P)

Federal Securities

U.S. Agency Securities A

Interest Bearing Deposit Accounts, including
   Certificates of Deposit

A or fully insured by the 
FDIC

Commercial Paper 180 days Highest Short-Term Rating

Federal Funds or Bankers' Acceptances 1 year Highest Rating Category

Money Market Funds AAAm-G, AAAm or Aam
Obligations the interest on which is excludable
   from gross income pursuant to IRS Tax
   Code Section 103 A
Obligations issued by any corporation 
organized
   and operating within the U.S. with assets A

Municipal Bonds or Notes Two Highest Categories

Guaranteed Investment Agreements A

(LAIF)  
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 
 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 

C.  Custodial Credit Risk 
 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository 
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to 
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California 
Government Code and the District's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements 
that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following 
provision for deposits:  
 
The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by 
state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a 
depository regulated under State law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market 
value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount 
deposited by the public agencies. Of the bank balances, up to $250,000 at June 30, 2015 and 2014 
is federally insured and the remaining balance is collateralized in accordance with the Code; 
however, the collateralized securities are not held in the District's name. 
 
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the 
value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The 
Code and the District's investment policy contains legal and policy requirements that would limit 
the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit 
risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk 
does not apply to a local government's indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual 
funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).  

 
D.  Interest Rate Risk 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value 
of an investment. Normally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of 
its fair value changes in market interest rates. The District generally manages its interest rate risk 
by holding investments to maturity. 
 
The District is a participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by 
California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of 
California. The District reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF, 
which is the same as the value of the pool share. The balance is available for withdrawal on 
demand, and is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an 
amortized cost basis. Included in LAIF’s investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage 
obligations, mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state funds, 
and floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, United 
States Treasury Notes and Bills, and corporations. At June 30, 2015 and 2014, these investments 
matured in an average of 239 and 232 days, respectively. 
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 
 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
E.   Credit Risk 
 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization.  As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Local Agency Investment Fund 
was not rated. 

 
F.   Concentration of Credit Risk 
 

The District's investment policy contains no limitations on the amounts that can be invested in 
any one issuer as beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. There were no 
investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total District's investments at June 30, 
2015 and 2014, respectively. 
 

NOTE 3 – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 

 The District’s accounts receivable at June 30, was as follows: 
 

Description 2015 2014

Sewer services $136,598 $135,097
Franchise/Lease 125,005 104,369
Property tax 11,411 13,295
Recycling 44,374 33,772
Other, net of allowance 56,102 14,150

$373,490 $300,683
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 
 

NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

A. Capital Assets Activity 

Changes in capital assets for the current fiscal year were as follows: 

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
June 30, 2014 Transfers Transfers June 30, 2015

Non-depreciable assets:
Land and land rights $2,773,507 $2,773,507
Easements 2,169,875 2,169,875
Construction-in-process 5,216,228 $2,331,010 ($975,774) 6,571,464

Total non-depreciable assets 10,159,610 2,331,010 (975,774) 11,514,846

Depreciable assets:
Sewer system improvements 171,012,558 1,536,943 172,549,501
Sewer collection and outfall system 48,905,133 558,429 49,463,562
Sewer facilities equipment 8,117,280 267,803 (80,568) 8,304,515
Equipment 1,605,946 191,718 (67,762) 1,729,902

Total depreciable assets 229,640,917 2,554,893 (148,330) 232,047,480

Accumulated depreciation:
Sewer system improvements (35,631,996) (4,134,970) (39,766,966)
Sewer collection and outfall system (14,164,014) (559,538) (14,723,552)
Sewer facilities equipment (4,889,327) (414,838) 76,646 (5,227,519)
Equipment (901,776) (92,105) 65,960 (927,921)

Total accumulated depreciation (55,587,113) (5,201,451) 142,606 (60,645,958)

Total depreciable assets, net 174,053,804 (2,646,558) (5,724) 171,401,522

Total capital assets, net $184,213,414 ($315,548) ($981,498) $182,916,368
 
 

Major capital assets additions during the year include improvements to portions of the District’s 
sewer collection and treatment system and pump stations. 
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 
 

NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 

Changes in capital assets for the prior fiscal year were as follows: 
 

Balance Deletions/ Balance
June 30, 2013 Additions Transfers Reclassifications June 30, 2014

Non-depreciable assets:
Land and land rights $2,773,507 $2,773,507
Easements 2,118,095 $51,780 2,169,875
Construction-in-process 3,471,016 4,233,740 ($2,488,528) 5,216,228

Total non-depreciable assets 8,362,618 4,285,520 (2,488,528) 10,159,610

Depreciable assets:
Sewer system improvements 173,897,528 1,154,737 (2,853,534) ($1,186,173) 171,012,558
Sewer collection and outfall system 46,908,353 322,094 1,674,686 48,905,133
Sewer facilities equipment 7,290,422 224,568 (583,883) 1,186,173 8,117,280
Equipment 1,774,464 32,322 (200,840) 1,605,946

Total depreciable assets 229,870,767 1,733,721 (1,963,571) 229,640,917

Accumulated depreciation:
Sewer system improvements (31,620,083) (4,286,818) 274,905 (35,631,996)
Sewer collection and outfall system (13,644,771) (519,243) (14,164,014)
Sewer facilities equipment (5,174,029) (199,989) 484,691 (4,889,327)
Equipment (942,086) (86,305) 126,615 (901,776)

Total accumulated depreciation (51,380,969) (5,092,355) 886,211 (55,587,113)

Total depreciable assets, net 178,489,798 (3,358,634) (1,077,360) 174,053,804

Total capital assets, net $186,852,416 $926,886 ($3,565,888) $184,213,414

 

Major capital assets additions during the year include construction of the District's new recycled 
water facility and other buildings, structures and improvements. 
 

B. Construction-In-Process 
 
The District is involved in various construction projects throughout the year. Once completed, 
projects are capitalized and depreciated over the life of the asset. 

Construction-in-process consists of the following projects as of June 30: 

Projects 2015 2014 2013

Wastewater treatment plant upgrade $4,332,365 $3,834,595 $879,643
Collection system improvements 1,497,782 132,920 1,747,180
Pump station rehabilitation 56,979 941,953 785,526
North Bay Water Reuse Authority 435,945 104,650
Hamilton Wetlands Outfall Monitoring 68,254 52,954
Novato Creek Watershed 100,000
Administrative building updates 54,622
Various other minor projects <$50,000 25,517 149,156 58,667

Total $6,571,464 $5,216,228 $3,471,016
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 
 

NOTE 5 – COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 

The changes to compensated absences balances at June 30, were as follows: 
 

Balance Balance Due Within
2014 Additions Deletions 2015 One Year

$159,904 $17,323 ($43,282) $133,945 $33,486

Balance Balance Due Within
2013 Additions Deletions 2014 One Year

$160,967 $17,562 ($18,625) $159,904 $39,976
 

 
NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM DEBT 

A. Long-Term Debt Activity 

Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2014-2015 were as follows: 

Balance Balance Due within
June 30, 2014 Retirements June 30, 2015 one year

Long-term debt:
2011 Wastewater Revenue

Certificates of Participation $20,120,000 ($855,000) $19,265,000 $885,000
SRF Loan payable 74,366,047    (3,594,171)    70,771,876 3,680,431

Total long-term debt $94,486,047 ($4,449,171) $90,036,876 $4,565,431

 
Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2013-2014 were as follows: 
 

Balance Balance Due within
June 30, 2013 Retirements June 30, 2014 one year

Long-term debt:
2011 Wastewater Revenue

Certificates of Participation $20,950,000 ($830,000) $20,120,000 $855,000
SRF Loan payable 77,875,980    (3,509,933)    74,366,047    3,594,171       

Total long-term debt $98,825,980 ($4,339,933) $94,486,047 $4,449,171
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 
 

NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 

B. 2011 Wastewater Revenue Certificates of Participation 
 

The District issued $21,750,000 in Wastewater Revenue Certificates of Participation on 
September 27, 2011 to finance the construction of wastewater system improvements and pay 
issuance costs.  The Certificates are payable from net revenues of the District and bear interest 
rates of 3.00%-4.75%. Interest payments are due February 1 and August 1 of each year, 
commencing on February 1, 2012. Principal payments are due February 1 of each year 
commencing February 1, 2013 through 2032. 

 
The following table summarizes the debt service maturity of the District for the 2011 Certificates 
of Participation: 

 
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2016 $885,000 $811,148 $1,696,148
2017 905,000 775,748 1,680,748
2018 925,000 739,548 1,664,548
2019 945,000 702,548 1,647,548
2020 970,000 664,548 1,634,548

2021-2025 5,350,000 2,716,140 8,066,140
2026-2030 6,445,000 1,542,346 7,987,346
2031-2032 2,840,000 199,960 3,039,960

Total $19,265,000 $8,151,986 $27,416,986

 
 

C. Loan Payable - State Water Resources Control Board Loan 
 

In fiscal year 2008, the District was granted a loan for $81,329,083 from the California State 
Water Resources Control Board under the State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan program to upgrade 
and expand the Novato Treatment Plant to treat the combined flow of the District's wastewater 
treatment plants. The funds received are Federal funding provided to the State of California under 
the Federal Clean Water Act.  
 
The District constructed the Ignacio Transfer Pump Station at the site of the Ignacio Treatment 
Plant along with the Ignacio Conveyance Force Main to convey flow from the Ignacio Transfer 
Pump Station to the Novato Treatment Plant.  
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 
 

NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
As of June 30, 2015, the District has received $81,328,983 from the SRF loan program. Interest 
accrues on the obligation at a rate of 2.40% compounded annually. The first debt service payment 
was paid on December 31, 2011 and each December 31st thereafter through fiscal year 2031. The 
following table summarizes the debt service maturity of the District for this loan as follows: 

 
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2016 $3,680,431 $1,698,525 $5,378,956
2017 3,768,762          1,610,195         5,378,957
2018 3,859,212          1,519,744         5,378,956
2019 3,951,833          1,427,123         5,378,956
2020 4,046,677          1,332,279         5,378,956

2021-2025 21,737,653 5,157,128 26,894,781
2026-2030 24,474,421 2,420,359 26,894,780

2031 5,252,887 126,069 5,378,956

Total $70,771,876 $15,291,422 $86,063,298
 

 
NOTE 7 – OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PAYABLE 
 

The District follows the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 
45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions. This Statement establishes uniform financial reporting standards for employers 
providing postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB). Required disclosures are 
presented below. 

 
A.  Plan Description – Eligibility 
 

The District pays a portion of the cost of health insurance for retirees under any group plan 
offered by CalPERS, subject to certain restrictions as determined by the District. 

 
Membership in the OPEB plan consisted of the following members as of June 30: 
 

2015 2014 2013

Active plan members 14 14 19
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 20 22 23

Total plan membership 34 36 42
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 
 

NOTE 7 – OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PAYABLE (Continued) 
 
B.  Single-Employer Plan - Description of Benefits 

The District offers post employment medical benefits to retired employees who satisfy the 
eligibility rules. Spouses, surviving spouses and eligible dependents are also eligible to receive 
benefits. Retirees may enroll in any plan available through the District's CalPERS medical plan. 
The contribution requirements of Plan members and the District were adopted by the Board of 
Directors in July 2008 as follows: 

 
The District contributes toward post-retirement benefits for employees who retire after age 50 
with at least 5 years of service. For those employed prior to July 1, 2008, who retire after age 55 
with at least 10 years of service, the District will pay the full monthly premiums for medical 
coverage for the retired employee, but not more than the Kaiser Northern California amount. If 
the retiree is at least age 60 with at least 15 years of service, the premium for the employee's 
eligible spouse is paid. Coverage is for the lives of the retired employee and spouse. Medical 
coverage is provided under any plans offered by CalPERS. 
 
For all other employees, hired on or after July 1, 2008, who retire after age 50 with at least 5 
years of service, the District will pay the minimum CalPERS medical benefit. In 2015 and 2014, 
respectively, this minimum amount was $122 and $119 per month. This benefit is paid for as long 
as the retiree or spouse is living, provided he/she is covered under the CalPERS medical plans. 

 
C.  Funding Policy 
 

The District is required to contribute the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) of the Employer, 
an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. 
The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the 
normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a 
period not to exceed thirty years. The current ARC rate is 15.141% of the annual covered payroll.  
 
The District will pay 100% of the cost of the post-employment benefit plan for those employees 
employed prior to July, 1, 2008 and meet the required service years. The District will pay the 
minimum CalPERS medical benefit for all other employees who do not meet the previously noted 
service requirements. The District funds the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis and records a liability 
for the difference between pay-as-you-go and the actuarially determined ARC cost.  
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NOTE 7 – OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PAYABLE (Continued) 
 
D.  Actuarial Assumptions 
 

The annual required contribution (ARC) was determined as part of a July 1, 2012 actuarial 
valuation using the entry age normal cost method.  This is a projected benefit cost method, which 
takes into account those benefits that are expected to be earned in the future as well as those 
already accrued.  The actuarial assumptions included (a) 4.0% investment rate of return, (b) 0.0% 
projected annual salary increase, (c) 4.0% inflation rate and (d) health care cost trend rates from 
5.0% to 7.0% for medical benefits.  Projections for benefits for financial reporting purposes are 
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and 
include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation as well as the historical 
pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and plan members.  The actuarial methods 
and assumptions used include techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in 
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.  Actuarial calculations reflect a long-
term perspective and actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future.  Actuarially determined amounts 
are subject to revision at least tri-ennially as results are compared to past expectations and new 
estimates are made about the future.  The District’s OPEB unfunded actuarial accrued liability is 
being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll using a 30 year level dollar 
amortization period on a closed basis. 

 
E. Funding Progress and Funded Status 
 

The District’s Net OPEB Obligation (NOO) is recorded in the Statement of Net Position and is 
calculated as follows: 
 

2015 2014 2013
Annual OPEB expense:

Annual required contribution (ARC) $425,357 $413,773 $402,145
Interest on net OPEB obligation 43,361 36,772 29,803
Adjustment to annual required contribution (69,391) (57,519) (45,628)

Total annual OPEB expense 399,327 393,026 386,320

Change in net OPEB payable obligation:
Age adjusted contributions made (226,567) (228,301) (212,088)

Total change in net OPEB obligation 172,760 164,725 174,232

OPEB obligation - beginning of year 1,084,036 919,311 745,079

OPEB obligation - end of year $1,256,796 $1,084,036 $919,311

 
 

The actuarial accrued liability (AAL) representing the present value of future benefits as of June 30, 
2015 amounted to $5,347,276 per the actuarial study dated July 1, 2012. 
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NOTE 7 – OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PAYABLE (Continued) 
 
The Plan’s annual required contributions and actual contributions for fiscal years ended June 30, is 
set forth below: 
 

Fiscal Annual Age Percentage Net OPEB
Year OPEB Adjusted of Annual OPEB Obligation

Ended Cost Contribution Cost Contributed Payable

2015 $399,327 $226,567 56.74% $1,256,796
2014 393,026         228,301          58.09% 1,084,036       
2013 386,320 212,088 54.90% 919,311

Three-Year History of Net OPEB Obligation

 
 

The Schedule of Funding Progress below, and the required supplementary information 
immediately following the notes to the financial statements, presents trend information about 
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the 
actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Trend data from the last actuarial study is presented below: 
 

Unfunded UAAL as a 
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Annual Percentage 

Actuarial Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Plan Assets Liability Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
7/1/2012 $0 $5,347,276 $5,347,276 0.00% $1,973,900 270.899%  

 

NOTE 8 – NET POSITION 

Calculation of net position as of June 30, were as follows: 

2015 2014

Net investment in capital assets:
Capital assets - not being depreciated $11,514,846 $10,159,610
Capital assets, net - being depreciated 171,401,522 174,053,804
SRF Loan Payable (70,771,876) (74,366,047)
Certificates of Participation (19,265,000) (20,120,000)
Unspent proceeds 1,693,343 4,804,012

Total net investment in capital assets 94,572,835 94,531,379

Unrestricted net position:

  Non-spendable net position:
Prepaid expenses and deposits 52,296 55,178

Total non-spendable net position 52,296 55,178

  Spendable net position:
Undesignated net position reserve 10,974,274 11,997,550

Total spendable net position 10,974,274 11,997,550

Total unrestricted net position 11,026,570 12,052,728

Total net position $105,599,405 $106,584,107
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NOTE 9 – DEFERRED COMPENSATION SAVINGS PLAN 
 

The District's employees may participate in two 457 Deferred Compensation Programs 
(Programs). The Programs are available to all District employees and are entirely voluntary. The 
purpose of these Programs is to provide deferred compensation for public employees that elect to 
participate in these Programs. Generally, eligible employees may defer receipt of a portion of 
their salary until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. Until the funds are 
paid or otherwise made available to the employee, the employee is not obligated to report the 
deferred salary for income tax purposes. The District makes no matching contributions to the 
Programs.  

 
Federal law requires deferred compensation assets to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of 
the participants. Accordingly, the District is in compliance with this legislation. Therefore, these 
assets are not the legal property of the District, and are not subject to claims of the District's 
general creditors. Market value of all Program assets held in trust by the District's two deferred 
compensation programs at June 30, 2015 and 2014 amounted to $2,842,141 and $2,628,385, 
respectively.  

 
The District has implemented GASB Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. Since the District has little 
administrative involvement and does not perform the investing function for this plan, the assets 
and related liabilities are not shown on the statement of net position.  

 
The District also offers a 401(a) Plan (Plan) to management and confidential employees. The 
District contributes 2.5% of base salary for all qualified employees, with the exception of the 
General Manager-Chief Engineer. The District's contribution for the General Manager-Chief 
Engineer is equivalent to the maximum of a 457 plan's annual contribution. Employee 
contributions to this Plan are mandatory for qualified employees. Market value of all Plan assets 
held in trust by the District's 401(a) Plan at June 30, 2015 and 2014 amounted to $657,237 and 
$661,809, respectively.  
 

NOTE 10 – PENSION PLANS 
 
A. General Information about the Pension Plans 
 

Plan Descriptions – The District contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement 
System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. CalPERS 
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits 
to plan members and beneficiaries. CalPERS acts as a common investment and administrative 
agent for participating public agencies within the State of California. Benefit provisions and all 
other requirements are established by state statute and the Agency. Copies of CalPERS annual 
financial report may be obtained from their Executive Office: 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA, 
95814.  
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NOTE 10 – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 
 

Benefits Provided – CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of 
living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and 
beneficiaries.  Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time 
employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 55 with 
statutorily reduced benefits.  All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 
years of service.  The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 
Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit.  The cost of living adjustments 
for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.  

 
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2015, are summarized as follows: 

 
Miscellaneous Tier I

Hire date Prior to January 1, 2012

Benefit formula 2% @ 55

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.43% to 2.42%
Required employee contribution rates 7.00%
Required employer contribution rates 11.522%

Miscellaneous Tier II

Hire date
Between January 1, 2012 

through December 31, 2012

Benefit formula 2% @ 60

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.09% to 2.42%
Required employee contribution rates 7.00%
Required employer contribution rates 8.005%

Miscellaneous Tier III
Hire date On or after January 1, 2013

Benefit formula 2% @ 62

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 6.25%
Required employer contribution rates 6.237%  

  

32



NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 
 

NOTE 10 – PENSION PLANS (Continued)   
 
Contributions – Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires 
that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by 
the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate.  Funding 
contributions for both Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by 
CalPERS.  The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs 
of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any 
unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the 
actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.   

 
For the year ended June 30, 2015, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for 
each Plan were as follows: 

 

Tier I Tier II Tier III

Contributions - employer $163,257 $0 $10,153

35,410 0 0

Miscellaneous

Contributions - employee (paid by employer)  
 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 

 
As of June 30, 2015, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the 
net pension liability of each Plan as follows: 

 
Proportionate Share

of Net Pension Liability

Miscellaneous Tier I $3,332,844

Miscellaneous Tier II 2,082

Miscellaneous Tier III 970

Total Net Pension Liability $3,335,896
 

 
The District’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net 
pension liability.  The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of June 30, 2014, 
and the total pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013 rolled forward to June 30, 2014 using 
standard update procedures.  The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a 
projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The District’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of June 30, 2013 and 2014 was as 
follows: 

Tier I Tier II Tier III

Proportion - June 30, 2013 0.14000% 0.00009% 0.00004%

Proportion - June 30, 2014 0.14000% 0.00008% 0.00004%

Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.00000% -0.00001% 0.00000%

Miscellaneous
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NOTE 10 – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 
 

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the District recognized pension expense of ($343,533).  At 
June 30, 2015, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $208,489

Differences between actual and expected experience

Changes in assumptions

Net differences between projected and actual earnings 
     on plan investments ($896,812)
Adjustments due to differences in proportion 77,412 (8,788)

Total $285,901 ($905,600)
 

 

The $208,489 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year 
ended June 30, 2016.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 

 
Year Ended

June 30

2015 ($42,572)

2016 (249,619)

2017 (255,744)

2018 (280,253)  
 

Actuarial Assumptions – The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations 
were determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

 
Miscellaneous Tier I, II, and III

Valuation Date June 30, 2013

Measurement Date June 30, 2014

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method

Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.5%

Inflation 2.75%

Projected Salary Increase (1)

Investment Rate of Return 7.5% (2)
Mortality Derived using CalPERS 

Membership Data
Post Retirement Benefit Increase Contract COLA up to 2.75% until 

Purchasing Power Protection 
Allowance Floor on Purchasing 
Power applies, 2.75% thereafter

(1)  Depending on age, service and type of employment

(2)  Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation  
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NOTE 10 – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 
 
The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 
2013 valuation were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the 
period 1997 to 2011.  Further details of the Experience Study can found on the CalPERS website.  

 
Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50% for each 
Plan.  To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a 
discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a 
discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the 
testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.50 percent discount rate 
is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long term 
expected discount rate of 7.50 percent will be applied to all plans in the Public Employees 
Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed report that can be 
obtained from the CalPERS website.    

 
According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined 
without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50 percent investment return 
assumption used in this accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses.   Administrative 
expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points. An investment return excluding administrative 
expenses would have been 7.65 percent.  Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly 
higher Total Pension Liability and Net Pension Liability. CalPERS checked the materiality 
threshold for the difference in calculation and did not find it to be a material difference. 
 
CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability 
Management (ALM) review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018. Any 
changes to the discount rate will require Board action and proper stakeholder outreach. For these 
reasons, CalPERS expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for 
GASB 67 and 68 calculations through at least the 2017-18 fiscal year. CalPERS will continue to 
check the materiality of the difference in calculation until such time as we have changed our 
methodology. 

 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. 

 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term 
and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using 
historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over 
the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. 
Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of 
benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the 
single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows 
as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was 
then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest 
one quarter of one percent.  
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NOTE 10 – PENSION PLANS (Continued) 
 
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of 
return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate 
and asset allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.   

 

Asset Class

New
Strategic

Allocation
Real Return

Years 1 - 10(a)
Real Return

Years 11+(b)

Global Equity 47.0% 5.25% 5.71%

Global Fixed Income 19.0% 0.99% 2.43%

Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 0.45% 3.36%

Private Equity 12.0% 6.83% 6.95%

Real Estate 11.0% 4.50% 5.13%

Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 4.50% 5.09%

Liquidity 2.0% -0.55% -1.05%
Total 100%

(a)  An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.

(b)  An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.  
 
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate – The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for 
each Plan, calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as well as what the District’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 
that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate: 

 

Tier I Tier II Tier III

1% Decrease 6.50% 6.50% 6.50%

Net Pension Liability $5,938,097 $3,709 $1,728

Current Discount Rate 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Net Pension Liability $3,332,844 $2,082 $970

1% Increase 8.50% 8.50% 8.50%

Net Pension Liability $1,170,731 $732 $341

Miscellaneous

 
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary 
net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.   
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NOTE 11 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is a 
member of the California Sanitation Risk Management Authority (CSRMA), an 
intergovernmental risk sharing joint powers authority currently operating as a common risk 
management and loss prevention program for sixty California sanitation districts. The District 
pays an annual premium to CSRMA for its public liability and workers compensation risk 
coverage. The Agreement for formation of the CSRMA provides that CSRMA will be self-
sustaining through member premiums and will provide specific excess insurance through 
commercial companies. The CSRMA is allowed to make additional assessments to its members 
based on a retrospective premium adjustment process. At June 30, 2015, the District participated 
in the self insurance programs of the CSRMA as follows: 

 
 General and automotive liability, including errors and omissions and employment practices 

liability (EPL): The District is self-insured through the CSRMA up to $15,000,000 with a 
$25,000 deductible ($25,000 for EPL, $25,000 for sewer backup, and $2,500 for E&O) per 
occurrence. Excess liability insurance is purchased above the $15,000,000 self-insured layer to 
$25,000,000 through CSRMA. 

 
 Workers' compensation and employer's liability: The District is self-insured through the CSRMA 

up to $750,000 with a deductible of $0 per claim. The District purchased through CSRMA, 
additional excess workers' compensation coverage and excess employer's liability coverage of 
$1,000,000. 
 
In addition to the above, the District also has the following insurance coverage:  
 

 Master crime policy coverage up to $2,000,000 for all lines including $1,000,000 for public 
employee dishonesty, forgery or alteration, computer fraud, coverage of up to $100,000 for 
faithful performance and coverage up to $10,000 for theft, with a deductible of $10,000 per 
claim. 

 
 Special form property coverage up to $68,564,881 with a deductible of $25,000 per claim.  

Included in this coverage are a public entity pollution liability policy for up to $25,000,000 and a 
cyber liability policy for up to $2,000,000.  

 
 Public entity physical damage up to $792,380 total value, with a $2,000/$5,000 deductible. 

 
Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in any of the last three fiscal years 
and there were no reductions in the District's insurance coverage during the years ending June 30, 
2015, 2014 and 2013. Liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a loss has been incurred 
and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated net of the respective insurance coverage. 
Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR). There 
were no IBNR claims payable as of June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013. 
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NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
A.  Local Improvement District Bonds 
 

Within the District's boundaries, there exists Assessment District No. 2001 (Novato Heights) 
which was formed for the sole purpose of financing sewer system improvements. The District is 
not liable for repayment of any bonds issued to finance these local improvements. The District 
acts as the agent for the property owners within the assessment district by collecting assessments, 
forwarding collections to bondholders, and initiating foreclosure procedures if appropriate. The 
outstanding balance on these bonds as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 was $1,055,000 and 
$1,155,000, respectively.  

 
B.  Construction Contracts 
 

The District has a variety of agreements with developers and private parties relating to the 
installation, improvement or modification of transmission facilities and distribution systems 
within its service area. The financing of such improvements is provided primarily from advances 
for construction and the District's capital replacement reserve. The District has committed to 
approximately $549,365 of open construction contracts as of June 30, 2015. 

 
C.  Grant Awards 
 

Grant funds received by the District are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits 
could lead to requests for reimbursements to the grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed 
under terms of the grant. Management of the District believes that such disallowances, if any, 
would not be significant.  

 
D.  Litigation 
 

In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside 
parties. After consultation with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such 
matters, if any, will not materially affect its financial condition. 
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Tier I Tier II Tier III
6/30/2014 6/30/2014 6/30/2014

Plan's proportion of the Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) 0.05356% 0.00003% 0.00002%
Plan's proportion share of the Net 
Pension Liability (Asset) $3,332,844 $2,082 $970
Plan's Covered Employee Payroll 1,682,255                96,504                     103,602                   
Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liability/(Asset) as a 
Percentage of its Covered-Employee 
Payroll 198.12% 2.16% 0.94%

Plan's Proportionate Share of the 
Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage 
of the Plan's Total Pension Liability 83.03% 83.02% 83.02%
Plan's Proportionate Share of Aggregate 
Employer Contributions 440,923                   275 128

*- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown.

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF THE PLAN'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE 

Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Last 10 Years*

NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS AS OF 
THE MEASUREMENT DATE

District Miscellaneous Plans

As of fiscal year ending June 30, 2015
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Tier I Tier II Tier III
2015 2015 2015

Actuarially determined contribution $184,347 $3,894 $9,028
Contributions in relation to the actuarially 
determined contributions (184,347)                             (3,894)                                 (9,028)                                 
Contribution deficiency (excess) $0 $0 $0

Covered-employee payroll $1,682,255 $96,504 $103,602

Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 10.96% 4.04% 8.71%

Notes to Schedule
Valuation date: 6/30/2013

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry age
Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, closed
Remaining amortization period 15 years
Asset valuation method 5-year smoothed market
Inflation 2.75%
Salary increases (1)
Investment rate of return
Mortality Derived using CalPERS Membership Data
Post Retirement Benefit Increase Contract COLA up to 

2.75% until Purchasing 
Power Protection 
Allowance Floor on 
Purchasing Power applies, 
2.75% thereafter

(1)  Depending on age, service and type of employment
(2)  Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation

* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown.

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT

7.75% (2)

District Miscellaneous Plan

Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
As of fiscal year ending June 30, 2015

Last 10 Years*
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
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Novato Sanitary District 
Schedule of Funding Status – Other Post-Employment Benefits Obligation 

As of Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015  
 

 
Funded Status and Funding Progress of the Plan 
 

Unfunded UAAL as a 
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Annual Percentage 

Actuarial Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Plan Assets Liability Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
7/1/2012 $0 $5,347,276 $5,347,276 0.00% $1,973,900 270.899%
7/1/2010 0 6,112,283 6,112,283 0.00% 2,000,000 305.610%
7/1/2009 0 5,554,000 5,554,000 0.00% 2,350,000 236.340%

Required Supplemental Information - Schedule of Funding Progress

 
 

The most recent valuation (dated July 1, 2012) includes an Actuarial Accrued Liability and 
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability of $5,347,276. There are no plan assets because the 
District funds on a pay as-you-go basis. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees 
covered by the plan) for the year ended June 30, 2015 was estimated at $1,529,895.  The ratio of 
the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to annual covered payroll is 349.52% 

 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

 
Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about 
the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to 
continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made 
about the future. Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the 
substantive plan at the time of each valuation and the pattern of sharing of costs between the 
employer and plan members to that point. Consistent with the long-term perspective of actuarial 
calculations, actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to 
reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

 
The following is a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods: 

 
Valuation date July 1, 2012 
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal cost method 
Amortization method Level percent of payroll amortization 
Remaining amortization period 27 years as of the valuation date 
Actuarial assumptions:  
   Investment rate of return 4.00% 
   Projected salary increase 0.00% 
   Inflation rate 4.00% 
Health care cost trend rates 5.00% - 7.00% 
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Novato Sanitary District 
Statistical Section 

 
This part of the District’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a 
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information says about the District’s overall financial health. 
 

Table of Contents 
 

Page No. 
 

Financial Trends  48-50 
These schedules contain information to help the reader understand how the District’s 
Financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

 
Revenue Capacity  51-56 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District’s most 
significant own-source revenue, sewer service charges. 

 
Debt Capacity  57-58 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the 
district’s current levels of outstanding debt and the District’s ability to issue 
additional debt in the future. 

 
Demographic Information  59 

This schedule offers demographic indicators to help the reader understand the 
environment within which the District’s financial activities take place. 

 
Operating Information  60-61 

This schedule contains service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand 
how the information in the District’s financial report relates to the service the District 
provides. 
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Fiscal Wastewater Permits, Inspections AB 939 Other Operating Total Operating
Year Service Charges and Other Fees Solid Waste Program Revenue Revenue

2006 8,161,755$              15,146                        264,378                      1,496,232                9,937,511              
2007 9,573,338                20,063                        271,378                      361,949                   10,226,728            
2008 11,063,829              39,291                        271,862                      393,668                   11,768,650            
2009 12,286,426              27,408                        271,862                      362,452                   12,948,148            
2010 13,462,437              23,163                        277,299                      308,817                   14,071,716            
2011 13,570,839              9,532                          280,493                      455,577                   14,316,441            
2012 13,671,131              21,441                        297,586                      235,128                   14,225,286            
2013 14,670,826              34,505                        297,586                      338,612                   15,341,529            
2014 15,157,903              39,023                        297,586                      354,587                   15,849,099            
2015 15,706,704              44,494                       297,586                    323,536                  16,372,320           

Source: Novato Sanitary District Accounting Department

Novato Sanitary District
 Operating Revenue By Source

Schedule 2
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Fiscal Collection Wastewater Wastewater Laboratory & Sewer and Recycled AB939 Solid Administration & Total Operating
Year System Treatment Reclamation/Disposal Monitoring Pump Stations Pump StationsWater Facility Waste Programs Engineering Expenses

2006 $ 2,020,955           307,605                      303,287              784,996         181,886              2,249,436             5,848,165            
2007 493,029             2,569,632           411,564                      331,627              280,028           297,396              2,536,362             6,919,638            
2008 694,147             2,289,718           426,492                      389,036              383,503           249,797              3,031,550             7,464,243            
2009 599,787             3,017,245           486,514                      537,069              332,808           286,682              2,425,285             7,685,390            
2010 828,832             3,102,119           296,268                      597,743              540,641           284,999              4,003,850             9,654,452            
2011 963,487             2,566,139           355,218                      688,238              673,344           307,137              2,910,480             8,464,043            
2012 1,283,228          2,560,633           442,266                      621,758              758,564           310,890              3,789,425             9,766,764            
2013 1,022,006          2,561,301           423,670                      572,718              668,427           31,301          318,616              2,505,751             8,103,790            
2014 1,188,408          2,562,314           418,748                      534,959              668,841           104,837        320,938              2,523,606             8,322,651            
2015 1,277,022          2,757,514           398,118                      555,215              686,789           100,354        289,586              1,829,708             7,894,306            

Notes: 
Beginning in 2007, Collection and Pump Stations were separate departments previously classified under the Sewer and Pump Stations department.
Beginning in 2012, the Recycled Water Facility began operations. 

Source: Novato Sanitary District Accounting Department

Novato Sanitary District
Operating Expenses by Activity

Schedule 3 
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Fiscal
Year Assessed Value Percent Change

2006 8,838,973,455$                 
2007 9,491,627,231                   7.38%
2008 9,829,812,081                   3.56%
2009 9,580,325,664                   -2.54%
2010 9,432,410,765                   -1.54%
2011 9,349,746,271                   -0.88%
2012 9,248,463,186                   -1.95%
2013 9,618,666,723                   2.88%
2014 10,091,742,535                 7.94%
2015 10,706,994,564                 15.77%

Source: County of Marin Tax Assessor

Novato Sanitary District
Assessed Value of Taxable Property

Schedule 4
Last Ten Years
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Current
Tax Levy Tax Collections Year %

Year Total Prior Year Current Year Total Prior Year Current Year Collected

2006 1,437,714$    1,096          1,436,617      1,437,713      1,096         1,436,617      99.92%
2007 1,762,233      1,745          1,760,488      1,762,233      1,745         1,760,488      99.90%
2008 2,002,026      2,202          1,999,824      2,002,026      2,202         1,999,824      99.89%
2009 1,928,207      1,701          1,926,506      1,928,207      1,701         1,926,506      99.91%
2010 1,725,949      1,752          1,724,197      1,725,949      1,752         1,724,197      99.90%
2011 1,773,877      2,696          1,771,181      1,773,877      2,696         1,771,181      99.85%
2012 1,795,167      2,066          1,793,101      1,795,167      2,066         1,793,101      99.88%
2013 1,795,782      1,562          1,794,220      1,795,765      1,545         1,794,220      99.91%
2014 1,941,094      1,321          1,939,773      1,941,094      1,321         1,939,773      99.93%
2015 1,999,816      2,696          1,997,120      1,999,816      2,696         1,997,120      99.87%

Source: Novato Sanitary District

Novato Sanitary District
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Schedule 5
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2006 1,436,617$    1,436,617      100.0% 1,096            0.1% 1,437,713
2007 1,760,488      1,760,488      100.0% 1,745            0.1% 1,762,233
2008 1,999,824      1,999,824      100.0% 2,202            0.1% 2,002,026
2009 1,926,506      1,926,506      100.0% 1,701            0.1% 1,928,207
2010 1,724,197      1,724,197      100.0% 1,752            0.1% 1,725,949
2011 1,773,877      1,771,181      99.8% 2,696            0.2% 1,773,877
2012 1,793,101      1,793,101      100.0% 2,066            0.1% 1,795,167
2013 1,794,220      1,794,220      100.0% 1,562            0.1% 1,795,782
2014 1,939,773      1,939,773      100.0% 1,321            0.1% 1,941,094
2015 1,997,120      1,997,120      100.0% 2,696            0.1% 1,999,816

Source: Novato Sanitary District Accounting Department

Percent of 
Current 

Taxes 
Net 

Collections

Novato Sanitary District
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Schedule 6

Fiscal Year
Current Tax 

Levy
Current Tax 
Collections

Percent of 
Current 

Taxes 

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Prior Year 
Tax 

Collections, 
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Fiscal Single Family Multi family
Year Residential Residential (3) Commercial Total

2006 15,816.80               4,598.60                 3,820.10           24,235.50                   
2007 16,559.00               4,735.60                 4,165.15           25,459.75                   
2008 17,193.00               4,608.20                 3,681.99           25,483.19                   
2009 17,572.20               4,969.60                 6,745.96           29,287.76                   
2010 17,568.60               5,016.80                 6,811.97           29,397.37                   
2011 17,407.40               5,130.40                 6,576.55           29,114.35                   
2012 17,474.40               5,182.60                 6,677.08           29,334.08                   

2013 17,705.80               5,184.20                 6,814.04           29,704.04                   
2014 17,717.00               5,220.20                 7,101.90           30,039.10                   
2015 17,741.20               5,234.20                 6,312.95           29,288.35                   

Notes: 

(1) The District charges its customers sewer service charges (SSC) on a per equivalent dwelling unit 

       (EDU) basis, and the charges appear on the customers' annual property tax bills.
(2)  Number of customers as of June 30 of fiscal year.
(3) Multi family residential includes apartments and  condominiums.

Source: Novato Sanitary District Operations Department

Novato Sanitary District
 Equivalent Dwelling Units by Customer Type at Fiscal Year-End(1)

Last Ten Fiscal Years(2)

Schedule 7
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2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Price per EDU per year  $         342  $      382 $      422 $        462 $     462 $      462 $      462  $      493 512$       531$        
Price per EDU per month  $      28.50  $   31.83 $   35.17 $     38.50 $  38.50 $   38.50 $   38.50  $   41.08 $   42.67 $    44.25 

EDUs
Single Family 1
Apartments, Condominiums, Duplexes and Townhous 1 per living unit
Motor Home or Trailer Park 1 per space
Guest House with kitchen and bedroom 1 per living unit
Guest House without kitchen 0 per living unit

Non Residential 

Base Charge/ Unspecified $          0.22 $         2.89
Auditoriums theaters 0.22 2.89 
Auto service stations 0.22 2.89 
Churches 0.22 2.89 
Gymnasium w/ showers 0.22 2.89 
Office 0.22 2.89 
Public office 0.22 2.89 
Retail 0.22 2.89 
School classrooms/administration 0.22 2.89 
Meeting halls with kitchens 0.22 4.05 
Mortuary 0.22 6.29 
Supermarkets 0.29 6.29 
Dental offices 0.29 2.89 
Hospitals 0.29 2.89 
Medical offices 0.29 2.89 
Veterinary offices 0.29 2.89 
Bakeries 0.44 6.29 
Cafeteria/dining area 0.44 6.29 
Delicatessens 0.44 6.29 
Ice Cream/yogurt shops 0.44 6.29 
Restaurants cafes 0.44 6.29 
Laundry and Laundromats 0.65 4.05 

Warehouse or Storage not live/work              -00 0.00 
Notes: 
 Rates as of July 1 of each year

Source: Novato Sanitary District Engineering Department

Charge per HCF 
water use

EDU Factors

Novato Sanitary District
Wastewater Service Charges

Schedule 8
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Percentage Percentage
Customer EDU's of Total EDU's of Total

Novato Unified School District 393.35             1.34% 149.78           0.61%
Fireman's Fund 381.05             1.30% 118.30           0.48%
BioMarin Pharmaceutical 304.69             1.04% 113.86           0.46%
Vintage Oaks Shopping Center ( not 
including Costco or Target 274.79             0.94% 287.71           1.16%
Hamilton Hangars (3-10) 167.62             0.57% 62.95             0.25%
Nave Bros 157.36             0.54% 168.78           0.68%
City Of Novato 136.68             0.47% 36.02             0.15%
Condiotti Enterprises Inc. 117.21             0.40% 1.00               0.00%
Novato Fair Shopping Center 111.48             0.38% 87.37             0.35%
Hamilton Marketplace 106.94             0.37% -                0.00%

Total EDUs: Principal customers 2,151.17          7.35% 1,025.77        4.14%

Total Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDUs) 29,288.35        100.00% 24,738.75      100.00%

Source: Novato Sanitary District Engineering Department

2015 2006

Novato Sanitary District
Principal Customers

Current Fiscal Year and Ten Years Ago
Schedule 9
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Net Operating Net Available Coverage
Fiscal Year Revenues   Expenses(1),(3) Revenues Principal Interest Total Ratio

2006 12,174,111$    (5,848,165)      6,325,946        300,000          20,687             320,687           19.73
2007 14,679,653      (6,919,638)      7,760,015        325,000          383,161           708,161           10.96
2008 15,069,957      (7,464,243)      7,605,714        -                  1,305,067        1,305,067        5.83
2009 16,248,422      (7,685,390)      8,563,032        -                  1,302,270        1,302,270        6.58
2010 16,510,972      (9,654,452)      6,856,520        24,773,024     1,211,880        25,984,904      0.264
2011 10,003,454      (8,464,043)      1,539,411        5,233,207       209,456           5,442,663        0.283
2012 18,185,824      (9,766,764)      8,419,060        21,136            2,669,346        2,690,482        3.129
2013 17,127,623      (8,103,790)      9,023,833        4,231,967       2,712,097        6,944,064        1.300
2014 14,753,874      (8,322,651)      6,431,223        4,339,933       2,678,227        7,018,160        0.916

        2014  (2) 18,256,014      (8,322,651)      9,933,363        4,339,933       2,678,227        7,018,160        1.415
2015 18,977,948      (7,894,306)      11,083,642      4,449,171       2,567,765        7,016,936        1.580

Notes: 
(1) Operating expenses exclude depreciation expense.
(2) Net revenues calculated without the non-cash adjustment for the capital asset disposal/write down of $3.5M in FY2014.
(3) Information in this table is based on GAAP(Generally Accepted Accounting Principles) which is accrual basis accounting. 
      Therefore, debt coverage ratios in this table will be different than those in the District's annual budget documents, which
      use cash basis accounting.
Source:  Novato Sanitary District Accounting Department

Debt Service

Novato Sanitary District
Debt Coverage

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 10
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Certificates
of

Fiscal General Obligation Credit SRF Loan Participation Per As a Share of
Year Bonds Payable Line Payable Bond Payable Debt Capita Personal Income

2006 325,000$                191,500               -                  516,500           10.12 0.01%
2007 -                          30,006,231          -                  30,006,231      575.66 0.65%
2008 -                          30,006,231          21,691,826      51,698,057      983.75 1.09%
2009 -                          30,006,231          47,989,587      77,995,818      1,473.82 1.65%
2010 -                          5,233,207            75,348,207      80,581,414      1,552.51 1.72%
2011 -                          -                       81,329,083      81,329,083      1,550.42 1.63%
2012 -                          -                       81,307,947      21,750,000               103,057,947    1,964.66 2.09%
2013 -                          -                       77,878,980      20,950,000               98,828,980      1,873.54 1.97%
2014 -                          -                       74,366,047      20,120,000               94,486,047      1,783.87 1.80%
2015 -                          -                       70,771,876      19,265,000               90,036,876      1,680.58 1.58%

Source: Novato Sanitary District Accounting Department

Novato Sanitary District
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Total
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Personal
(1) District Income Personal

Service Novato as Unemployment (thousands of Income
Year Population a % of Marin Rate Population dollars) per Capita

2006 51,037           20% 4.6% 253,818         21,184,396    83,463             
2007 52,125           20% 4.4% 255,080         22,600,000    88,600             
2008 52,552           20% 5.5% 257,406         23,200,000    90,130             
2009 52,921           20% 9.4% 259,772         23,156,000    89,140             
2010 51,904           21% 9.8% 252,409         22,800,000    90,330             
2011 52,456           21% 9.5% 255,015         24,300,000    95,289             
2012 52,750           21% 7.9% 255,031         23,920,000    93,793             
2013 52,554           21% 6.0% 256,069         24,382,800    95,220             

2014 52,967           21% 4.8% 258,365         25,645,300    99,260             

2015 53,575           21% 3.9% 258,972         27,587,500    106,527           

Notes:
(1) Approximate population of Novato Sanitary District service area.
(2) Only County data is updated annually.  Therefore, the District has chose to use its data since the District believes

 that the County data is representative of the conditions and experience of the District.

Sources: California Department of Finance, County of Marin,  quickfacts.census.gov, North Marin Water District,
                  Google Public Data, Real Estate Center demographics.

County of Marin(2)

Novato Sanitary District
Demographics and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Calendar Years
Schedule 12
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Department 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Administration 5 5 4 5 5 5 4 4 5 5
Engineering 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 5 6
Lab Services 3 3 4 4 3 3 2 2 1 0
Operations 8 8 6 6 5 3 0 0 0 0
Collections 7 8 7 8 10 9 9 9 8 7
Maintenance 6 6 6 6 4 1 1 1 1 1
Safety 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Total 35 36 34 36 34 28 23 23 21 20

Notes:

The decrease in operations staff (from 2010-2012) occurred with the transition of Treatment Plant Operations to Veolia Water.  
The Safety resource is a Central Marin Sanitation Agency (CMSA) employee and is a shared service position with CMSA.

Source: Novato Sanitary District Records

Novato Sanitary District
Operating and Capacity Indicators

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Employees
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Total Annual
Fiscal  Miles of Number of Treatment (MG)
Year Sewer Lines Pump Stations Novato Ignacio Novato Ignacio

2006 222 41 3.54 1.470 4.53 2.02 1,829
2007 225 42 3.47 1.340 4.53 2.02 1,756
2008 * 225 42 4.04 0.000 6.55 0 1,475
2009 225 42 4.89 0.000 6.55 0 1,785
2010 226 42 4.23 0.000 7.05 0 1,789
2011 226 42 4.20 0.000 7.05 0 2,069
2012 226 42 4.00 0.000 7.05 0 1,709
2013 264 42 3.88 0.000 7.05 0 1,788
2014 264 42 3.45 0.000 7.05 0 1,501
2015 264 42 3.33 0.000 7.05 0 1,628

Notes:
N/A - Data not available for these years
MG - Millions of Gallons
MGD - Millions of Gallons per Day

*In 2008, the Ignacio Treatment Plant was transitioned to a transfer pump station (Ignacio Transfer Pump Station), and all wastewater 
  treatment capability was consolidated at the Novato Treatment Plant site.

Source: Novato Sanitary District Operations and Accounting Departments

Treatment Capacity (MGD)

Novato Sanitary District
Other Operating and Capacity Indicators

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 14
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE:  Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 45 
(“GASB 45”), Other Post- 
Employment Benefits (OPEB) – 
Prefunding Options. 

MEETING DATE: December 14, 2015 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.:  7.c. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive presentations from CalPERS and Public Agency 
Retirement System (PARS) representatives on investment options for prefunding Other 
Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) liability, and provide direction to staff. 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
 
At its September 2, 2015 meeting, the Finance Committee received a report titled “Valuation 
of Retiree Health Benefits, Report of GASB 45 Valuation as of July 1, 2015”, prepared by Nick 
Franceschine of North Bay Pensions.  Mr. Franceschine verbally reviewed his report with the 
Committee at that meeting, including information on the District’s retiree health benefit 
obligations, and the District’s future funding options, consistent with GASB 45 requirements.  

In addition, staff and Mr. Franceschine presented information on prefunding scenarios for the 
District’s projected GASB 45 liabilities based on Mr. Franceschine’s actuarial work. It was 
noted that options utilizing these scenarios are available from entities such as CalPERS, and 
the Public Agency Retirement System (PARS) company. 

Upon discussion, the Committee asked that the presentation be shared with the full District 
Board at a future Board meeting. The Committee also asked that staff bring forward at a 
future Finance Committee meeting, a side-by-side presentation by CalPERS and PARS 
representatives of their individual investment options for prefunding alternatives. 

As follow-up by staff, the presentation was also made to the full District Board at its 
September 14, 2015 meeting. Staff also contacted CALPERS and PARS to set up 
presentations by their representatives to the Committee at this current meeting.  

Subsequently, representatives from both CalPERS and PARS made presentations to the 
Finance Committee at its November 30, 2015 meeting. Copies of the handout materials from 
each presentation are attached. At that meeting, the Finance Committee also asked that the 
CalPERS and PARS representatives make the same presentation to the full Board. 

Accordingly, staff requests that the Board consider the information to be presented by the 
CALPERS and PARS representatives at this meeting, and provide direction to staff. 
 
      
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Copy of CalPERS presentation. 

2. Copy of PARS presentation. 

DEPT. MGR.: lmc, ssk GENERAL MANAGER: SSK 
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE:  Receive Wastewater Operations 
Committee Meeting Report, October 
2015 

MEETING DATE: December 14, 2015 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 8.a.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Information. Receive Wastewater Operations Committee Report 
(meeting of November 16, 2015). 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   

The October 2015 reports for wastewater treatment operations, collection system operations, and 
reclamation facilities are attached.  

Wastewater Treatment Facility 

Novato Treatment Plant (NTP) water quality performance was excellent with all parameters well within 
effluent standards. There were no NPDES violations. The Recycled Water Facility produced 10.0 MG 
of recycled water in October, and had no excursions. Safety performance was excellent with another 
accident-free month for a total of 1,985 accident-free days through the end of October. The Discharge 
Monitoring Report (DMR), Electronic Self-Monitoring Report (e-SMR), and Recycled Water Report, for 
September 2015, were submitted on October 20, 2015.Good weather and favorable irrigation 
conditions resulted in the ability to delay bay discharge until November 1st.  

Odor Control and Landscaping 

Operations staff continued to monitor media in the odor control beds. The beds were topped off in the 
summer and seem to be functioning well. The District’s odor consultant, David McEwen of Brown and 
Caldwell is currently reviewing data from the test period of the pilot odor control system at the 
Headworks area which consisted of a chemical feed system to neutralize odor causing compounds. 
District staff will be reviewing possible additional oleander plantings along the northeast fence-line with 
its landscape contractor in response to neighborhood compliments and requests for more plantings.  

Collection System and Pump Stations 

Staff cleaned 62,391 ft of sewer lines, televised 10,957ft with the CCTV truck and 3,074ft with the 
Push Cam, 2,649 ft of which were performed in lieu of hand-rod work. Additionally, staff conducted 
213 lift station inspections, and inspected eight (8) air relief valves, responded to two planned power 
outages at Bahia Pump Station No.1 and a power outage at Olive Street Pump Station due to PG&E 
equipment failure.   

Safety: No lost time accidents in October 2015 for a total of 1,693 accident-free days. 

Standard and Emergency Operating Procedures (SOPs & EOPs): While no new core SOPs were 
generated, staff received training on a new Programmable Logic Controller. 

Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSOs):  There were no (zero) SSOs in October 2015. 

Reclamation Facility 

The rancher tended to his cattle this month in preparation of moving off site. A total of 84.05 MG of 
treated water was used for irrigation this month. A new irrigation control program was installed at Site 
2. Approximately 750 yards of remnant sludge from a project at the old Ignacio Treatment Plant 
Sludge Lagoons was deposited in the Dedicated Land Disposal (DLD) site.  
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Agenda Packet from November 16, 2015 Wastewater Operations Committee meeting, 
(October 2015 Reports). 

DEPT. MGR.: JB (Veolia), SRK, DD, EB GENERAL MANAGER: SSK 
 



 NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 

Meeting Date:  November 16, 2015 

The Wastewater Operations Committee of the Novato Sanitary District will hold a meeting at 
2:00 PM, Monday, November 16, 2015 at the District offices, 500 Davidson Street, Novato. 

AGENDA 

1. AGENDA APPROVAL:

2. PUBLIC COMMENT (PLEASE OBSERVE A THREE-MINUTE TIME LIMIT):
 This item is to allow anyone present to comment on any subject not on the agenda, or to
request consideration to place an item on a future agenda.  Individuals will be limited to a three-
minute presentation.  No action will be taken by the Committee at this time as a result of any
public comments made.

3. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 19, 2015 MEETING

4. WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITIES OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REPORT,
OCTOBER 2015:
a. Treatment Plant Performance Report
b. Maintenance Report
c. Safety and training
d. Odor control and landscaping report.

5. COLLECTION SYSTEM OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REPORT, OCTOBER 2015:
a. Collection System Maintenance
b. Pump Station Maintenance
c. Collection System Performance
d. Safety and Training

6. RECLAMATION FACILITY REPORT, OCTOBER 2015:
a. Ranch Operations
b. Irrigation Parcels
c. Irrigation Pump Station

7. OTHER ITEMS:

8. ADJOURNMENT:
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the District at (415) 892-1694 at least 24 hours prior 
to the meeting.  Notification prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable 
accommodation to help ensure accessibility to this meeting. 

Materials that are public records and that relate to an open session agenda item will be made 
available for public inspection at the District office, 500 Davidson Street, Novato, during 
normal business hours. 

Item 8.a.
Attachment 1

(62 pages)
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October 19, 2015 
 
A regular meeting of the Wastewater Operations Committee of Novato Sanitary District was held 
at 2:00 p.m., Monday, October 19, 2015, at the District Office, 500 Davidson Street, Novato. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Committee Members Jerry Peters and Brant Miller.  
 
STAFF PRESENT:    Sandeep Karkal, General Manager-Chief Engineer 
    Erik Brown, Technical Services Manager 
    Steve Krautheim, Field Services Manager 
    Dasse de Iongh, Interim Collections System Superintendent 
    Julie Swoboda, Administrative Secretary 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: John Bailey, Project Manager, Veolia 

Lynda Farmery, Admin/Planner, Veolia 
  
AGENDA APPROVAL:   Approved as presented. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:    None. 
 
APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES FOR SEPTEMBER 21, 2015:  The September 21, 2015 
meeting minutes were approved as presented.  
 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITIES OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REPORT FOR 
SEPTEMBER 2015: 
 
- Treatment Plant Performance Report, Maintenance Report and Safety & Training:    
John Bailey, Veolia Plant Manager, provided an overview of treatment plant operations for the 
month of September.  He discussed key operations and maintenance events at the Novato 
facility, the Ignacio Transfer Pump Station, the Recycled Water Plant, and the Sludge Lagoons.  
He stated that the monthly average flow was 3.23 MGD and that the treatment plant performance 
was very good with no violations or excursions. 
 
The Plant Manager discussed training events completed in September and stated that as of 
September 30th, Veolia employees have been accident free for a total of 1,954 days.   
He reviewed the operations and maintenance report and stated that 12.573 million gallons of 
recycled water were produced.  He stated that Jerome Meter (H2S) readings continue to be taken 
within the treatment plant as well as in the Lea Drive neighborhood area and that eleven (11) 
odor notifications were received in September.   
 
- Odor control and landscaping report:  The General Manager discussed odor control related 
activities and stated that in late September, operations staff assisted the District’s odor consultant 
Mr. David McEwen of Brown and Caldwell in installing a pilot odor control system at the 
Headworks area.  He stated that the method utilized a chemical system to feed a mist of sodium 
hypochlorite and sodium hydroxide at a controlled rate into the headspace of the headworks area 
to neutralize odor causing compounds.  He noted that the test was entirely funded by Brown and 
Caldwell under one of their innovative technology grant programs and that Mr. McEwen is 
reviewing results from the testing. 
   



Meeting Minutes - Wastewater Operations Committee 
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The General Manager stated that the redwood trees in the northeast corner of the plant site and 
the site vegetation continue to be irrigated with recycled water and continue to respond well to the 
drought conditions.   
 
COLLECTION SYSTEMS OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE REPORT FOR SEPTEMBER 
2015:   
 
The Field Services Manager presented the Collection Systems Monthly Report for September 
2015.  He reported that the Collection Systems crew cleaned a total of 63,461 feet of sewer 
pipeline and that outside contractors cleaned 2,506 feet of large diameter sewer mains.  He 
stated that staff continued to smoke test District sewer mains, completing approximately 13,179 
feet in September.  He stated that the department completed 340 maintenance work orders and 
discussed current projects being completed.  He stated that the District’s Closed Circuit 
Television van (CCTV van) televised 70 line segments totaling 7,687 feet and noted that three (3) 
areas were identified as needing further investigation and repairs.  He outlined the specialized 
training that the department completed and stated that as of September 30, 2015, the Collections 
Department and the District have worked accident free for a total of 1,662 days.   
 
The Field Services Manager stated that there was one sanitary sewer overflow in September at 
823 Reichert Avenue.  He stated that the overflow was a minor Category III event (SSO) with a 
release of approximately eight (8) gallons at the resident’s cleanout.  He noted that the stoppage 
may have been created when a rooter company cleaned the residence’s lateral and potentially 
released roots into the main, creating a blockage. 
 
RECLAMATION FACILITY REPORT FOR SEPTEMBER 2015:   
 
The Field Services Manager presented the Reclamation Facilities report for September.   
He stated that the rancher performed weed management and sprinkler repairs as well as tending 
to his cattle.  He stated that all parcels were irrigated and that approximately 58.24 MG of treated 
water was used for irrigation this month.  He stated that Custom Tractor Service (CTS) pumped 
sludge out of the sludge lagoons and into the Dedicated Land Disposal (DLD) area, in addition to 
dredging the lagoons.  He noted that CTS pumped approximately 3.12 MG of sludge out of the 
lagoons and into the DLD. 
 
MANAGER’S ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
The General Manager stated that the next Wastewater Operations Committee meeting will be 
held on Monday, November 16th at 2:00 p.m. at the District office. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  There being no further business to come before the Committee, the meeting 
adjourned at 2:37 p.m.   
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
     
Sandeep Karkal 
General Manager-Chief Engineer 

Julie Swoboda, Recording 





































































































NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
Wastewater Operations Committee Meeting 

Odor Control and Landscaping Report 
October 2015 

 
 

Page 1 of 1 

1.0 Background 
As mentioned in prior reports, the District has invested significant amounts beyond the 
substantial initial investment for odor control and landscaping from the original WWTP Upgrade 
Project.  These additional costs have included operational changes, measures related to further 
odor control measures, noise abatement, visual screening, wind shielding, and daily monitoring. 

In addition, Veolia staff continues to maintain the on-going operation of the odor control 
facilities. Similarly, District staff continues to work on the landscaping, especially at the fence-
line area next to the Lea Drive neighborhood, and at the northeast portion of the Novato 
Treatment Plant (NTP) site.   
 
2.0 Odor control 
Activities related to maintenance of the odor control facilities in October included: 

 The District’s odor consultant Mr. David McEwen of Brown and Caldwell is reviewing 
data from the test period for a pilot odor control unit. As discussed in the September 
report, operations staff assisted Mr. McEwen in installing a pilot odor control system at 
the Headworks area. The system utilized a chemical system to feed a mist of sodium 
hypochlorite and sodium hydroxide. The chemicals were fed at a controlled rate into the 
headspace of the headworks area to neutralize odor causing compounds. The test was 
conducted for about a week (two weeks including mobilization/demobilization), and other 
than operations staff time and small amounts of power and water, was entirely funded by 
Brown and Caldwell under one of their innovative technology grant programs. 

 Operations staff continued to monitor media in the large odor control bed between 
primary clarifiers #1 & #2. The media for this bed, as well as all for the other odor beds, 
was topped off in the summer, and all seem to be functioning well. 

 In response to Board member comments at the October 26, 2015 Board meeting, Veolia 
Water operations staff reviewed and revised the methodology for reporting odor contacts 
received from the neighborhood. The revised reports are presented in the Treatment 
Facilities Monthly Operations report from Veolia Water. Operations staff also continued 
to take additional Jerome meter readings in the neighborhood as requested by the 
Committee earlier in the summer. Staff also continued to use the Aqua-Fog system 
continues as needed (from a prior recommendation by Mr. McEwen). 

 Pre-chlorination: Sodium hypochlorite continues to be added as an oxidizer on an as-
needed basis to the influent flow, with operations staff monitoring performance (from 
another prior recommendation by Mr. McEwen). 

 
3.0 Landscaping 
District staff continues to work with its landscaping contractor Cagwin and Dorward (C&D) on an 
as-needed/as-directed basis on the landscaping and vegetation at the District’s fence-line on 
Lea Drive, and at the northeast corner area of the NTP.  The redwood trees in the northeast 
corner of the plant site, and the site vegetation continue to be irrigated with recycled water. Staff 
will be reviewing possible additional oleander plantings with the landscape contractor in 
response to a neighborhood compliments and request for more Oleander plantings. 

******** 
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1.0 General: 
An equivalent of about six (6) full time employees (FTE) worked in the Collection 
System Department during the month of October.  The breakdown of staff time for the 
month in terms of equivalent full-time employee hours utilized, works out approximately 
as follows:  

 1.8 FTE field workers for Sewer Maintenance (main line cleaning) 
 1.1 FTE field workers for Pump Station Maintenance 
 0.6 FTE field workers for Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) work 
 2.1 FTE field workers for time spent on data input, training, service calls, overflow 

response, or any other activity that does not directly relate to main line cleaning, 
CCTV work, or pump station maintenance, or special activities (for e.g. smoke 
testing of mainlines), and 

 An equivalent of 1.0 FTE field workers for vacation, holiday or sick leave. 
 
2.0 Collection System Maintenance: 
Performance metrics for the department are presented in the attached graphs showing 
the length of line cleaned/month, footage cleaned/hour worked, overflows/month, and 
the CCTV footage achieved.  A brief discussion is also provided below. 
 
Line Cleaning Performance:   
 
A total of 344 work orders were generated for October by the ICOM3 Computerized 
Maintenance Management System (CMMS).  Staff completed 319 work orders leaving 
twenty-five (25) work orders outstanding.  The 319 maintenance work orders completed 
in October resulted in 62,391 feet of sewer pipelines cleaned by staff.  
 
CCTV Performance:  
 
The District’s CCTV van was in the field for 12 working days inspecting 88 line 
segments totaling 10,957 feet.  Staff also televised 16 line segments totaling 3,074 feet 
using the Push Cam, with 12 of the line segments totaling 2,649 feet performed in lieu 
of hand rod work.   
 
CCTV Findings:  

 Infrastructure related:  The October CCTV identified 4 line segments that will require 
spot repairs or replacement, which will be appropriately prioritized under the 
District’s Annual Collection System Repairs Project, Account No. 72805.  Three of 
these line segments will be abandoned when the City of Novato’s Novato Boulevard 
Improvement Project is completed in the next few years. 
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 O&M related: The October CCTV work did not identify any areas that require a 
change in sewer line operations. 

 
3.0 Pump Station Maintenance: 
The Collection System Department conducted 213 lift station inspections this month.  89 
of the inspection visits were generated through the District’s JobsCal Plus CMMS 
system.  There are 14 outstanding work orders for the month, 7 corrective and 7 
preventive.  A Collection Systems (Pump Stations) Work Order Statistics summary is 
attached.   
In addition to normal maintenance activities, District staff performed the following: 
 

 Staff received training on a new Programmable Logic Controller (PLC) that was 
installed this month.  This PLC will provide real-time data to staff remotely. 

 Staff re-installed Pump No. 2 at the Olive Ridge Pump Station after it was 
returned from the repair shop. 

 Staff responded to two planned power outages at Bahia Pump Station No. 1. 
 Staff responded to a power outage at Olive Street Pump Station.  The power 

failure was cause by PG&E equipment failure on the power pole feeding the 
pump station. 

 
4.0 Air Relief/Vacuum Valves (ARVs): 
Staff completed maintenance inspections on 8 air relief/vacuum valves.   
 
5.0 Safety and Training:  
General:  
 
Collection System staff attended 4 safety 
tailgate meetings.  
 
Specialized training:  
 

 One staff member attended CWEA’s 
Safety Day in Woodland. 

 All staff members received training on 
Fire Prevention & Hot Work. 

 Management staff received training on 
Cal OES’s Incident Command System. 

 All staff members received training and were drilled on bypass pumping of a 
small pump station (Photo 1). 

 All staff members attended a safety luncheon that included a Wellness Program 
update by Dale Thrasher, the Safety Coordinator for the District. 

Photo 1- Bypass pumping drill at Deer Island Pump Station 
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Safety performance:  
 
There were no lost time accidents this month for a total of 1,693 accident free days 
since the last lost time accident. 
 
6.0 Minor Projects:  

 A contractor replaced a rod inlet in an 
easement adjacent to 851 Hayden 
Avenue. 

 The Olive Avenue Roof Replacement 
Project was completed this month 
(Photo 2). 

 
7.0 Standard Operating Procedures 
 (SOPs): 
No new core SOPs were identified, and as 
development of lower priority SOPs is being 
balanced against workload priorities, department staff did not generate any new SOPs 
in October.     
 
Also, the recently completed draft Core Competency Checklist continues to be used to 
track the initial training of a recently hired employee, and lessons learned will be 
incorporated in the final version, which will be used track the training of all department 
employees. Staff will also develop a similar draft checklist to use for tracking annual 
checks of Collections Department employees to determine where annual training is 
necessary. 
 
8.0 Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSOs): 
There were no (zero) SSOs in October. 
 

 
******** 

Photo 2 - New roof access hatch at Olive Street Pump Station 



Jan Feb March April May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec
Total Year to 

Date
Average Year 

to Date
A.  Employee Hours Worked             
Number of FTEs (main line cleaning), hrs. 1.9 1.2 1.5 2.2 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.0 1.6 1.8 0.0 0.0 NA 1.5
Number of FTEs (other) 1.6 2.1 1.8 2.0 1.9 2.1 2.4 2.3 2.8 2.1 0.0 0.0 NA 1.8
Number of FTEs (CCTV) 0.1 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.2 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.0 0.0 NA 0.2
Total, FTEs 3.6 3.5 3.4 4.2 4.0 4.5 4.7 4.7 5.0 4.5 0.0 0.0 NA 3.5
Regular Time Worked, (main line cleaning), hrs 333 194 273 363 281 339 380 341 293 321
Regular Time Worked on Other, hrs (1) 281 329 320 341 312 382 433 392 505 391
Regular Time Worked on CCTV (2) 15 36 4 0 71 72 45 67 86 117

Total Regular time, worked, hrs 628 559 597 703 663 793 857 800 884 828 0 0 7,309 609
Total Vacation/Sick Leave/Holiday, hrs 403 356 271 277 307 239 181 180 193 183 2,586 259

Vacation/Sick Leave/Holiday, FTEs 2.3 2.2 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.3 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.0 0.0 14.9 1.2
Overtime Worked on Coll. Sys., hrs 3 0 16 3 7 4 6 9 3 15 64 6
Overtime Worked on Other, hrs (1) 14 45 31 19 15 29 39 31 15 53 289 29
Overtime Worked on CCTV (2) 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 3 0 2 9 1

Total Overtime , hrs 17 45 46 22 25 33 45 43 18 69 NA NA 362 36
B.  Productivity
1.  Line Cleaning
Rodder Work Orders generated 90 31 42 23 11 46 69 43 40 15 410 41
Rodder 3208 ft. cleaned 15,611 6,776 7,657 3,885 2,857 8,033 12,373 7,451 7,679 3,568 75,890 7,589
Rodder - outside services, ft cleaned 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Flusher Work Orders generated 340 183 388 543 455 396 351 324 305 329 3,614 361
Truck 3205V ft. cleaned 107 4,165 2,352 22,584 18,806 1,100 4,618 0 4,349 26,527 84,608 8,461
Truck 3206V ft. cleaned 63,145 29,612 64,665 80,792 50,753 70,998 65,731 45,661 51,433 32,296 555,086 55,509
Flusher - outside services, ft. cleaned 1,349 553 0 127 0 0 0 8,990 2,506 0 13,525  

Total Footage cleaned(3) 78,863 40,553 74,674 107,261 72,416 80,131 82,722 53,112 63,461 62,391 NA NA 715,584 71,558
Work Orders completed 416 198 397 551 449 413 405 367 340 319 3,855 386
Work Orders backlog 14 16 33 15 17 29 15 0 5 25 NA NA 169 17
2. Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)
Camera Work Orders generated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CCTV Truck  3126T, ft. videoed 3,998 6,622 1,795 303 7,211 7,037 6,793 3,396 7,687 10,957 55,799 5,580
CCTV (hand cam), ft. videoed 6,378 806 706 0 1,842 5,303 4,279 5,161 1,805 3,074 29,354
CCTV Inspection - outside services, ft. videoed 1,349 553 0 127 0 0 0 9,496 2,506 0 14,031  

Total CCTV footage(3) 11,725 7,981 2,501 430 9,053 12,340 11,072 18,053 11,998 14,031 NA NA 99,184
C.  Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSOs) 1 4 3 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 11 NA
Minor (Category III) 1 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 6 NA
Major (Category II) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NA
Major (Category I) 0 3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 NA
Overflow Gallons 126 2,419 1,603 0 5 0 0 15 8 0 4,176 NA
Volume Recovered 0 0 98 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 98 NA
Percent Recovered 0% 0% 6% NA 0% NA NA 0% 0% NA NA NA 2% NA
D.  Service Calls (non-SSO related)
Service calls, normal hours, # 10 11 7 2 5 6 6 4 10 5 66 7
Normal hours S.C. response time, mins (avg.) 22 20 15 10 25 45 24 30 20 30 241 24
Service Callouts, after hours, # 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 1 2 0 9 1
After Hours S.C. response time, mins (avg.) 33 35 40 7 40 45 0 45 20 0 265 27
E.  Benchmarks
Average Ft. Cleaned/Hour Worked 237 209 274 296 258 236 218 156 217 195 NA NA NA 229
Total Stoppages/100 Miles 0.4 1.8 1.3 0.0 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.8 NA
Average spill response time (mins) 28 5 22 0 55 0 0 0 10 0 NA 12
Callouts/100 Miles 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.0 0.4 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.9 0.3
Overtime hours/100 Miles 1 0 7 1 3 2 3 4 1 6 0 0 28.44 2
Overflow Gallons/100 Miles 55 1052 697 0 2 0 0 7 3 0 0 -                1,816             151

(2)This category separates time spent on CCTV from other Collection System maintenance activities.
(3) Does not include outside services (tracked separately)

Novato Sanitary District
Collection System Monthly Report For October 2015 (as of October 31, 2015)

(1)This category includes time spent on: Data input, Training, Service Calls, Overflow Response, as well as any other activity that does not directly relate to main line cleaning or CCTV work.
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Jan Feb March April May June July August Sept* Oct* Nov Dec
Total Year 

to Date

Average 
Year to 
Date

Employee Hours Worked 210 286 260 245 205 246 276 242 201 233 0 0 2,402
Number of Employees (FTEs) 1.2 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.2 1.0 1.1 0.0 0.0 1.0
Regular Time Worked on Pump Sta 176 206 201 200 187 215 232 204 170 196 1,985
Overtime Worked on Pump Sta 34 80 59 45 18 31 44 38 32 37 417
After Hours Callouts 6 20 12 13 9 1 3 4 1 3 72
Average Callout response time (mins) 30 33 30 24 30 25 20 45 50 45 332 33

Lift Station Inspections
Number generated in month
Number closed in month
Work Orders
Number generated in month 125 117 180 144 143 182 236 165 120 103 1515 152
Number closed in month 121 112 167 126 121 160 236 150 107 89 1389 139
Backlog 4 5 13 18 22 22 0 15 13 14 0 0 126 11

Novato Sanitary District

Pump Station Monthly Report For October 2015 (as of October 31, 2015)



Open Work Orders 
Due Prior to 10/1/2015

Open Work Orders 
10/1/2015 - 
10/31/2015

Total Open 
Work Orders

Preventive 7 148 155
Corrective 7 0 7

Total 14 148 162

Closed Work Orders 
10/1/2015 - 10/31/2015

Preventive 148
Corrective 0

Total 148

Total 
Outstanding 
Work Orders as 
of 10/31/2015 14

COLLECTION SYSTEM (Pump Stations) 

October 1, 2015 - October 31, 2015
WORK ORDER STATISTICS
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1.0 Summary: 
The rancher tended to his cattle this month in preparation of moving off site.    A new 
irrigation control program was installed in the controller at Site 2.  Parcels were irrigated on 
all Sites without any reportable issues.  Sludge from a project at the old Ignacio Treatment 
Plant was deposited in the Dedicated Land Disposal site. 
 
2.0 Ranch Operations: 
The rancher continued to spend most of his time tending to the cattle preparing to move 
them off site in the coming months and performing sprinkler head repair & replacement.   
 
3.0 Irrigation Parcels: 
District staff continues to check the control systems at each site every few weeks to ensure 
they are functioning as expected.  As reported last month, staff found the controller for Site 
2 not working properly at the end of the month.  Staff found that the controller reverted back 
to an old program for a 21-day schedule.  The program for a 28-day schedule was reloaded 
and appears to be working properly.    

 
4.0 Irrigation Pump Station: 
Approximately 84.05 MG of treated water was used for irrigation this month.  Irrigation times 
were increased to accommodate less tertiary recycled water production at the treatment 
plant. 
 
5.0 Sludge Handling & Disposal:  
Approximately 750 yards of remnant 
sludge from a project at the old Ignacio 
Treatment Plant Sludge Lagoons was 
hauled to the Dedicated Land Disposal 
(DLD) and deposited there (Photo 1).  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

**** 

Photo 1 – Sludge from decommissioned Ignacio Treatment 
Plant Sludge Ponds in DLD before spreading. 



January February March April May June July August September October November December

Total Year 

to Date

Annualized 

Monthly 

Average

Irrigation Pump Station

Plant flow to ponds (MG) 0 0 0 0 0 90.64 88.64 80.12 84.31 96.26 440.0           36.66

Irrigation (MG) 0 0 0.0 0.09 7.86 59.2 91.59 62.45 58.24 84.05 363.5           30.29

Irrigation Pump 1 Hours 0.3 17.2 100.2 125.6 88.6 91.6 121.9 545.4           45.45

Irrigation Pump 2 Hours 0.1 16.7 102.4 121.1 96.7 93.7 127.3 558.0           46.50

Irrigation Pump 3 Hours 0.1 15.2 99.6 127.9 88.5 88.2 122.2 541.7           45.14

Washdown Water Pump Hours 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -               0.00

Wildlife Feed Pump Hours 331.5 51.6 0 626.8 740.5 743.4 743.8 722.8 3,960.4       330.03

Water Circulated through Wildlife Pond (MG) 0 0 20.88 3.25 0 39 47 47 47 46 0 0 249.5           20.79

Strainer No. 1 Hours 0.2 6.3 38 45.9 33.7 33.6 45.7 203.4           16.95

Strainer No. 2 Hours 0 6.3 39.8 45.9 33.7 33.6 46.1 205.4           17.12

Pond 1 Gauge @ Beginning of Month 5.4 5.4 5.6 5.4 5.4 4.9 5.3 3.6 3.8 5.1

Pond 1 Gauge @ End of Month 5.4 5.6 5.4 5.4 4.9 5.3 3.6 3.8 5.1 4.7

Pond 1 Gallons Stored @ End of Month(MG) 39.2 41 39.2 39.2 35.2 38.4 24.8 26.4 36.1 33.6

Pond 2 Gauge @ Beginning of Month 5.5 5.5 5.7 5.5 5.5 5 5.5 3.7 3.9 5.2

Pond 2 Gauge @ End of Month 5.5 5.7 5.5 5.5 5 5.5 3.7 3.9 5.2 4.7

Pond 2 Gallons Stored @ End of Month(MG) 52 54 52 52 47 52 33 35 49 43.4

Total Irrigation Water Stored 91.2 95 91.2 91.2 82.2 90.4 57.8 61.4 85.1 77 0 0

Drainage Pump Station No. 3

Drainage Pump No. 1 Hours 0 133.1 2.4 1.2 0 0 0 0 0 0

Drainage Pump No. 2 Hours 0 0 2.1 0.1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Drainage Pump No. 3 Hours 100.3 127.1 0.6 2.7 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Gallons Stormwater Pumped (MG) 30.09 78.06 1.53 1.2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 110.88 9.24

Drainage Pump Station No. 7

Drainage Pump No. 1 Hours 331.6 46.2 13.3 0.2 0.1 0 0 0 0 0

Drainage Pump No. 2 Hours 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Drainage Pump No. 3 Hours 0 1.5 2.7 7.5 0.1 0 0 0 0 0

Total Gallons Stormwater Pumped (MG) 149.22 21 7 3.47 0.09 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 181.44 15.12

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT

Reclamation Facility - Monthly Statistics for Calendar Year 2015, as of September, 2015
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE:  Capital Projects – Annual 
Treatment Plant & Pump Station 
Improvements; Ignacio Transfer Pump 
Station Site Improvements, Project 
Work Order No. 72805-15-01 

MEETING DATE:   December 14, 2015 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 9.a. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Grant Final Acceptance of the contract work, and authorize staff to file 
the Notice of Completion. 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION: 

On September 14, 2015 the District’s Board of Directors awarded the Contract for the Ignacio Transfer 
Pump Station (ITPS) Site Improvements to Maggiora & Ghilotti, Inc. (San Rafael) for a low bid amount 
of $138,138.00.  The purpose of the contract work was to provide additional wet weather storage by 
combining two decommissioned sludge storage lagoons into one wet weather storage pond.   

Work began on October 12, 2015 and was substantially completed on October 26, 2015.  During the 
course of the work there were several changes to the scope of work which were favorably resolved in 
the District’s favor, and resulted in a credit amount of $3,721.07 back to the District.   

At this time, the contract work is complete and ready for final acceptance. An aerial photo of the 
completed work with the new pond in the right foreground is provided below. The final project cost is 
$134,416.93, or $3,721.07 less than the original Contract amount of $138,138.  

Staff recommends that the Board grant final acceptance and authorize filing the Notice of Completion. 
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  The FY15-16 budget for Account No. 72805 includes a budget amount of 
$300,000, of which $73,294.34 has been expended to date. Also under Account No. 72805, $6,713.85 
has been committed to a few other minor projects to date. 

DEPT. MGR.:  srk GENERAL MANAGER: SSK 

SandeepK
Callout
New Pond
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE: Capital Projects: Collection 
System Improvements (Hamilton 
Trunk Sewer Rehabilitation Project), 
Account No. 72706. 

MEETING DATE:  December 14, 2015 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 9.b. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Authorize General Manager-Chief Engineer to issue a change 
order(s) in an amount not to exceed $55,000.00 to resolve an easement conflict. 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   

At its September 14, 2015 meeting the District Board awarded the Hamilton Trunk Sewer 
Rehabilitation Project to Michael Paul Company (Contractor) for a bid amount of $495,728.00.  
This project is located in a congested 60 ft. wide common utility easement along the SMART 
tracks west of Hamilton Drive.  As part of the project, the Contractor was to contact Pacific Gas & 
Electric (PG&E) and arrange to have several utility poles along the pipeline route to be held in 
place by PG&E equipment to prevent the poles from potentially toppling over, while the new 
sewer was placed in the same location as the old sewer.  These poles are within the District’s 
easement as well as a potentially overlapping PG&E easement.  This is not uncommon in areas 
of joint utility easements. 

The Contractor initially contacted PG&E, and PG&E reported that equipment would not be 
available until after the first of the year due to structure re-building in the Middletown fire area.  In 
addition, PG&E indicated there would be a cost for this work and requested a deposit of 
$24,414.31. According to Nute Engineering, this is the first time that they know of that PG&E has 
requested payment for such work.  Due to the urgency to complete the project, Mark Wilson of 
Nute Engineering contacted PG&E and worked exhaustively to encourage PG&E to arrive on site 
at an earlier date due to the fragile nature of the existing sewer.  PG&E agreed to arrive on site on 
December 14th. 

On December 9th Mark Wilson received an e-mail from PG&E stating that PG&E’s construction 
department had looked at the project and: (a) Determined that the sewer was too close to their 
pole(s), (b) That they would not come out and hold the pole(s), and (c) Informed the District that it 
needed to move the new sewer at least five feet away from the pole base(s). Staff and Nute are of 
the opinion that the District may have the option of forcing PG&E to move its poles out of the 
sewer easement. However, utilizing this option at this time would severely delay the project, and 
expose the District to legal expenses and an increased potential for a sewer pipe failure and 
resulting sewage spill(s). 

Staff looked at moving the sewer main and determined there is room to do this. The new location 
will be outside the District’s existing easement, but still within the 60 ft. wide common utility 
easement.  Currently, staff has identified additional costs for moving the sewer to be up to 
$55,000 (or about 11% of the bid amount).  Staff recommends that the Board authorize the 
General Manager-Chief Engineer to negotiate a change order(s) in an amount of up to 
$55,000.00 with the Contractor for this additional work. Staff will also pursue the possibility of a 
claim against PG&E for these additional costs. 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  This work will be funded from Collection System Improvements, 
Account No. 72706, which has a FY15-16 budget of $1,050,000 of which $84,242.56 has been 
expended, with no outstanding encumbrances at this time. 

DEPT.MGR.: srk, ssk GENERAL MANAGER:  SSK 
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NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE:  Administration: CASA 
Washington DC conference 
attendance 

MEETING DATE:  December 14, 2015 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 10.a. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Director Long and the General Manager-Chief 
Engineer to attend the California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Annual 
Washington DC conference, February 22-24, 2016. 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   

The next California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Annual Washington DC 
Conference will be held from February 22-24, 2016. Out-of-state travel requires pre-approval 
by the District Board of Directors.  
 
Director William Long also currently serves on the CASA Executive Board. 
 
It is recommended that the Board approve Director Long and the General Manager-Chief 
Engineer to attend the CASA Washington DC conference, February 22-24, 2016. 

BUDGET INFORMATION: The costs for attendance would be funded from Account No. 66170 – 
Travel, Meetings and Training, which has a current balance of $44,443,with no outstanding 
encumbrances. 

DEPT. MGR.: ssk GENERAL MANAGER: SSK 
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Preliminary	
  Program	
  

Tuesday,	
  January	
  19,	
  2016	
  –	
  Pre-­‐conference	
  Session	
  

11:30	
  a.m.	
  –	
  4:00	
  p.m.	
   CSRMA	
  Training	
  Seminar	
  
See	
  sign	
  up	
  form	
  for	
  featured	
  presentations	
  

Wednesday,	
  January	
  20,	
  2016	
  

9:00	
  a.m.	
  –	
  5:00	
  p.m.	
   Registration	
  

10:30	
  a.m.	
  –	
  12:00	
  p.m.	
   CASA	
  Board	
  of	
  Directors	
  Meeting	
  

10:00	
  a.m.	
  –	
  12:00	
  p.m.	
   The	
  Perfect	
  Board	
  –	
  A	
  Review	
  of	
  Roles	
  and	
  Board	
  Best	
  Practices	
  
Brent	
  H.	
  Ives,	
  BHI	
  Management	
  Consulting	
  

12:00	
  p.m.	
  –	
  1:30	
  p.m.	
   Associates	
  Committee	
  Meeting	
  

12:00	
  p.m.	
  –	
  1:00	
  p.m.	
  	
   Lunch	
  on	
  your	
  own	
  

1:30	
  p.m.	
  –	
  4:00	
  p.m.	
   Roundtable	
  Series	
  
Participate	
  in	
  2	
  one-­‐hour	
  roundtables	
  on	
  various	
  topics.	
  	
  
Meet	
  in	
  small	
  groups	
  with	
  a	
  subject	
  matter	
  expert	
  for	
  a	
  dialogue	
  about	
  the	
  topic.	
  
Sign	
  up	
  at	
  the	
  registration	
  table	
  for	
  the	
  roundtables	
  that	
  are	
  of	
  most	
  interest	
  to	
  you.	
  

Topics	
  include:	
  various	
  communications	
  strategies,	
  watershed	
  management,	
  wastewater	
  101,	
  what	
  makes	
  for	
  
effective	
  advocacy	
  meetings,	
  advocating	
  together	
  -­‐	
  preparation	
  for	
  the	
  Washington	
  D.C.	
  Capitol	
  Hill	
  visits,	
  drought	
  
impacts	
  on	
  collection	
  systems,	
  fire	
  ravaged	
  land	
  mitigation,	
  climate	
  change,	
  strategies	
  to	
  recruit	
  a	
  GM,	
  operator	
  
recruitment	
  and	
  training,	
  plus	
  more	
  to	
  follow	
  as	
  the	
  date	
  draws	
  near.	
  

1:30	
  p.m.	
  –	
  2:30	
  p.m.	
   Roundtables	
  Track	
  1	
  

2:30	
  p.m.	
  –	
  3:00	
  p.m.	
   Networking	
  Break	
  

3:00	
  p.m.	
  –	
  4:00	
  p.m.	
   Roundtables	
  Track	
  2	
  

4:15	
  p.m.	
  –	
  5:15	
  p.m.	
   Federal	
  Legislative	
  Committee	
  Meeting	
  
4:00	
  p.m.	
  –	
  5:30	
  p.m.	
   CSRMA	
  Executive	
  Board	
  Meeting	
  
5:30	
  p.m.	
  –	
  6:30	
  p.m.	
   Casual	
  Wine	
  and	
  Beer	
  Icebreaker	
  Reception	
  

Thursday,	
  January	
  21,	
  2016	
  

7:30	
  a.m.	
  –	
  4:30	
  p.m.	
   Registration	
  
7:30	
  a.m.	
  –	
  9:00	
  a.m.	
   CSRMA	
  Board	
  of	
  Directors	
  Meeting	
  
8:00	
  a.m.	
  –	
  9:00	
  a.m.	
   Utility	
  Leadership	
  Committee	
  Meeting	
  
8:00	
  a.m.	
  –	
  9:00	
  a.m.	
   Opening	
  Breakfast	
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Thursday,	
  January	
  21,	
  2016	
  continued	
  
	
  
9:30	
  a.m.	
  –	
  11:30	
  a.m.	
   Morning	
  Session	
  
	
  
	
   9:30	
  –	
  10:30	
   Keynote	
  Address	
  

Robert	
  Glennon,	
  Regents’	
  Professor	
  and	
  Morris	
  K.	
  Udall	
  Professor	
  of	
  Law	
  and	
  
Public	
  Policy	
  at	
  the	
  University	
  of	
  Arizona	
  

Robert	
  Glennon	
  is	
  one	
  of	
  the	
  nation’s	
  thought	
  leaders	
  and	
  commentators	
  on	
  water	
  policy	
  and	
  law.	
  	
  Author	
  of	
  two	
  
award	
  winning	
  best	
  sellers,	
  he’s	
  a	
  frequent	
  contributor	
  to	
  national	
  publications	
  and	
  a	
  guest	
  on	
  various	
  television	
  and	
  
radio	
  shows.	
  Dr.	
  Glennon	
  will	
  share	
  his	
  sensible	
  blueprint	
  for	
  achieving	
  a	
  sustainable	
  water	
  future.	
  
	
  
	
   10:30	
  –	
  11:30	
   And	
  The	
  Forecast	
  Is…	
  El	
  Niño	
  Is	
  Back	
  

• Preparing	
  for	
  El	
  Nino	
  –	
  Demetri	
  Polyzos,	
  Senior	
  Engineer	
  in	
  Water	
  Resources	
  
Management	
  Group,	
  Metropolitan	
  Water	
  District	
  

• Impacts	
  on	
  Clean	
  Water	
  Utilities	
  -­‐	
  Ben	
  Horenstein,	
  Director	
  of	
  Wastewater,	
  EBMUD	
  
	
  

12:00	
  p.m.	
  –	
  1:30	
  p.m.	
   Conference	
  Luncheon	
  
	
  
	
   12:30	
  –	
  12:45	
   Executive	
  Director’s	
  Report	
  
	
   12:45	
  –	
  	
  	
  1:15	
   The	
  Big	
  Reveal:	
  CASA’s	
  Updated	
  Brand	
  and	
  Website	
  

	
   	
  	
  1:15	
  –	
  	
  	
  1:30	
   2015	
  CASA	
  Education	
  Foundation	
  Scholarship	
  Recipients	
  
	
   	
   	
   Jim	
  Graydon	
  and	
  Jeff	
  Moorhouse,	
  Board	
  Members,	
  CEF	
  
	
  
2:00	
  p.m.	
  –	
  4:00	
  p.m.	
   Afternoon	
  Session	
  
	
   	
   	
   USEPA	
  Environment	
  Finance	
  Centers	
  
	
   	
   	
   Andrew	
  Sawyers,	
  Director,	
  Office	
  of	
  Wastewater	
  Management	
  (invited)	
  
	
  
	
   	
   	
   Sustainable	
  Workforce	
  Recruitment	
  and	
  Strategies	
  	
  
	
   	
   	
   Nathan	
  Van	
  De	
  Voorde,	
  Manager	
  of	
  Global	
  Talent	
  Acquisition,	
  Black	
  &	
  Veatch	
  
	
  
	
   	
   	
   Utility	
  of	
  the	
  Future	
  Blueprint	
  -­‐	
  Advancing	
  the	
  concept	
  of	
  an	
  “Innovation	
  Ecosystem”	
  
	
   	
   	
   Ken	
  Rubin,	
  Managing	
  Director,	
  Rubin	
  Mallows	
  Worldwide	
  
	
  
5:30	
  p.m.	
  –	
  6:30	
  p.m.	
   Reception	
  sponsored	
  by	
  the	
  Associates	
  
	
  
Friday,	
  January	
  22,	
  2016	
  
	
  
7:30	
  a.m.	
  –	
  11:00	
  a.m.	
  	
   Registration	
  
7:30	
  a.m.	
  –	
  8:30	
  a.m.	
   State	
  Legislative	
  Committee	
  Meeting	
  
8:00	
  a.m.	
  –	
  9:00	
  a.m.	
   Breakfast	
  
9:00	
  a.m.	
  –	
  11:00	
  a.m.	
   Closing	
  Session	
  
	
  
	
   	
   	
   True	
  Transparency:	
  Beyond	
  Branding	
  
	
   	
   	
   Panel	
  Discussion	
  	
  

Moderator	
  Kevin	
  M.	
  Hardy,	
  Encina	
  JPA	
  
	
   	
   	
   	
   	
  	
  
	
  
11:00	
  a.m.	
  –	
  3:00	
  p.m.	
   Attorneys	
  Committee	
  Meeting	
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